
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session. 

Please ask for: 
Marie Lowe 

 
 
*PLEASE NOTE DATE 
 

3 August 2016 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING AND PLANNING PANEL to be held on Thursday, 11th August, 
2016 at 7.30 pm in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden 
City, Herts, AL8 6AE 
 

 
 
Yours faithfully 

Director (Governance) 
 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   SUBSTITUTIONS  
 

 To note any substitution of Members made in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rules 19-22. 
  

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

 To note apologies. 
  

3.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meetings held on 14 July 2016 
and 20 July 2016 (previously circulated). 
 

4.   NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 11  
 

Public Document Pack



5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on the Agenda. 
  

6.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS  
 

 Up to fifteen minutes will be made available for questions from members of the 
public on issues relating to the work of the Panel and to receive any petitions. 
 

7.   WELWYN HATFIELD COMMUNITY HOUSING TRUST MONITORING Q1 2016-
17 (Pages 3 - 24) 
 

 Report of the Director (Finance and Operations) provides details on the 
performance of the Welwyn Hatfield Community Housing Trust.  
 

8.   UPDATE ON THE COUNCIL'S AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROGRAMME (AHP) 
(Pages 25 - 52) 
 

 The report of the Director (Finance and Operations) provides an update on the 
Council’s Affordable Housing Programme (AHP). 
 

9.   SECTION 106 REPORT (Pages 53 - 88) 
 

 The report of the Director (Governance) provides an explanation of the Section 
106 and Community Infrastructure Levy process and the monies currently held by 
the Borough Council. 
 

10.   HERTFORDSHIRE INFRASTRUCTURE AND PLANNING PARTNERSHIP (HIPP) 
ANNUAL REVIEW 2015/2016 (Pages 89 - 104) 
 

 The report of the Director (Governance) details the achievements of the 
Hertfordshire Infrastructure and Planning Partnership (HIPP) over the course of 
2015-2016. 
 

11.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUCH URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION:  
 

 
Circulation: Councillors S Boulton (Chairman) 

M Perkins (Vice-Chairman) 
D Bell 
D Bennett 
H Bromley 
 

M Cowan 
G Hayes 
M Holloway 
P Shah 
M Spinks 
 

   
 
 Executive Board 

Press and Public (except Part II Items) 
 
 



If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Marie Lowe, 
Governance Services Unit on 01707 357443, fax 01707 357257 or email – 
m.lowe@welhat.gov.uk 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Part I 
Item No: 0 
Main author: Jagdish Jethwa 
Executive Member: Mandy Perkins 
All Wards 

 
CABINET HOUSING AND PLANNING PANEL – 11 AUGUST 2016 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR (FINANCE AND OPERATIONS) 
 
WELWYN HATFIELD COMMUNITY HOUSING TRUST MONITORING  
 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This is a report of the performance of Welwyn Hatfield Community Housing Trust’s 
(the Trust) Voids Management Services in Appendix A and the work with the 
Tenant’s Panel in Appendix B.  

1.2 The report also includes a summary of the performance in the key areas of the 
Trust’s activity up to the end of the first quarter 2016/17 are set out in Appendix C.  

2 Financial Implication(s) 

2.1 There are no direct financial implications for the Council arising from this report.  
Any decisions around capital expenditure are dealt with by specific reporting. 

3 Recommendation(s) 

3.1 It is recommended that the Committee note the report 

4 Background 

4.1 Welwyn Hatfield Community Housing Trust was set up on 1 April 2010.  A 
management agreement sets out the roles and responsibilities of the Trust.  Each 
year the Trust and the council agree a Delivery Plan, which sets out the aims and 
objectives for that year. 

4.2 As part of the Monitoring Framework timely performance management information 
will be reported to this committee each quarter.  The committee has requested that 
full statistics for all the service areas managed by the Trust are presented twice a 
year (at close of Quarter Two and Quarter Four). 

4.3 In addition, a detailed presentation, setting out how a particular area of service is 
managed, will be presented twice a year (at close of Quarter One and Quarter 
Three. 

This Quarter one report focuses on the Voids Management Services (Appendix A) 
and the work with the Tenant’s Panel (Appendix B). 

4.4 The monitoring framework will ensure that: 

 The Trust delivers the key goals and objectives set out in the Annual Delivery Plan 

 The best possible service is provided for the customers and the wider community 

 The Trust delivers continuous improvement in the services it provides and the way 
these are delivered. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



- 2 - 

 The monitoring framework enables the Council and the Trust to identify 
opportunities for improvements and where necessary to deliver change as well as 
celebrate and share success. 

5 Policy Implication(s) 

5.1 Welwyn Hatfield Community Housing Trust has been established in accordance 
with Council policy and is being monitored in accordance with the Monitoring 
Framework.  There are no new policy implications arising from this report. 

6 Risk Assessment 

6.1 A risk assessment has not been prepared in relation to the contents of this report 
as there are no significant risks inherent in the proposals. 

7 Equality and Diversity 

7.1 I confirm that it has not been necessary to carry out an Equality Impact 
Assessment (EIA) in connection with this report. 

 

Name of author Jagdish Jethwa Ext 2352 
Title Housing Policy and Client Manager 
Date 26 July 2016 
 
Background papers: Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council and Welwyn Hatfield Community 
Housing Trust Management Agreement. 

Page 6



- 3 - 

Appendix A        Part I 
Item No:  
Main author – David Baker 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD COMMUNITY HOUSING TRUST 
CHPP - 11 AUGUST 2016 
REPORT OF THE MANAGING DIRECTOR  

VOID MANAGEMENT – INFORMATION ABOUT THE WORK OF THE WELWYN 
HATFIELD COMMUNITY HOUSING TRUST 

1 Introduction 
1.1 Void management is the term used to describe how the Trust deals with vacant 

property in order to minimise loss of rental income and to make effective use of the 
housing stock to meet need in the Borough.  In 2015/16, Welwyn Hatfield 
Community Housing Trust re-let 434 empty homes, approximately 5% of the 
council’s stock.   

1.2 The void process begins when notice to terminate is received from the current 
tenant and ends once the new tenant has been signed up and moved into their 
new home. Within the void period there are many activities that take place to 
identify repairs required to the empty property and to select the prospective new 
tenant.  

1.3 This report gives the Panel some information about void management generally, 
with a look at past and present performance. It is written for information 

2 Void Re-Let Times 

2.1 The average time taken to re-let voids across Welwyn Hatfield to the end of 
Quarter 4 2015/16 was 17.2 days. This exceeded the target of 21 days and, in 
recent years, average turnaround times have been reducing:  

 

2.2 Current performance compares favourably with other housing providers and has 
been steadily improving year on year, consolidating our position as a top 
performing organisation in this service area.  The benchmarked performance for 
2015/16 actually saw our position ranked 1st out of 246 housing organisations 
indicating that we were the best performer for the year.  

Page 7



- 4 - 

2.3 LI 212 Average Void times in days (cumulative): 

 

 

 

 

 

Void Loss 

2.4 No rent income is collected whilst a property is empty and it is therefore important 
to reduce void losses by re-letting empty homes as quickly as possible.  In 
2015/16, the percentage of rent lost due to properties being empty was 0.61%.  

2.5 In 2013/14 the average re-let time was 20.9 days. The reduction in average re-let 
times since then means that the losses through voids have been effectively 
controlled. Due to increases in the rent charged for properties for 2014/15 and 
2015/16 however, the percentage of rent lost has increased despite the average 
turnaround times improving significantly during this time (0.55% void loss for 
2013/14 and 0.58% for 2014/15). The void losses would have been much higher 
still had the average turnaround times not reduced during this period. This is 
especially important given the recent rent decreases that have been applied to all 
tenancies from April this year.  

2.6 Keeping void losses to a minimum through the efficient re-letting of empty 
properties is a key part of our aim to optimise income collection. As well as the 
rent lost due to the time taken to re-let empty homes, the amount of money spent 
in repairing empty homes to bring them back to the re-let standard impacts on our 
budgets.  

2.7 Percentage of rent lost from vacant dwellings (cumulative): 

  Target QTR1 QTR2 QTR3 QTR4 

2013/14 0.70% 0.54% 0.53% 0.56% 0.55% 

2014/15 0.70% 0.56% 0.55% 0.57% 0.58% 

2015/16 0.70% 0.61% 0.59% 0.53% 0.61% 

 

3 Void Works and Spend 

3.1 In order for staff to correctly identify works which are required to meet the re-let 
standard a void specification is worked to. This should ensure that no non-
essential work is carried out and that a consistent approach is taken across all 
voids. It is important that the specification is fully understood by both staff and 
tenants in order to manage expectations and to measure performance 
accordingly. 

3.1 In 2015/16, the average re-let spend per home to meet the lettable standard was 
£2613. Void works are carried out by the Housing Maintenance Team (HMT).  The 

 
Targe

t 
Apr to 
Jun  

No. of 
re-lets 

Apr to 
Sept 

No. of 
re-lets 

Apr  
to  

Dec 

No. of 
re-lets 

Apr 
to 

Mar 

No. of 
re-lets 

2013
/14 

21 
Days 

21.5 117 20.5 244 20.5 371 20.9 509 

2014
/15 

21 
Days 

18.8 123 17.5 244 17.0 364 17.2 487 

2015
/16 

21 
Days 

16.5 135 17.1 251 17.0 344 17.2 434 

Page 8



- 5 - 

standard aims to strike a balance in our approach to re-let repairs. It aims to 
consistently apply a minimum standard and level of repairs necessary to allow a 
new tenant to move into their home. This can be a fine line and is therefore an 
area that is often reviewed, particularly through customer feedback and 
complaints. Finding the right balance is a subjective judgement. We do review 
comments and suggestions for ways of improving our services and have separate 
processes in place for this.  

3.2 We do not carry out works that are not necessary, in order to constrain spending 
on re-let repairs and avoid incurring delays (and lost rent) in completing void 
works. This approach has helped us to achieve the best performing organisation 
of 2015/16 for average turnaround times. Our aim going forward is to strive to 
sustain this level of performance whilst improving further the quality of repairs 
undertaken. 

3.3 There is a very effective and joined up approach taken across teams in managing 
voids. The success of this approach can be measured through our performance 
figures and budget monitoring processes. This shows continuous improvement in 
the following areas: 

 Steady reduction in the time taken to re-let empty homes 

 Optimising rental income 

 Reduction in the amount spent on void repairs 

3.4 Key Performance Indicators Q1 2016/17 

3.5 The average turnaround times are up slightly at the end of Q1 this year compared 
to the average performance for 2015/16.  However, this is still within the target set 
for the year and within the range that can be reasonably expected.  

3.6 There were a few exceptional circumstances that led to an increase in the 
turnaround times for some individual properties during the period. These impacted 
on overall average re-let times. The exceptional circumstances included delays 
incurred awaiting police reference checks for a vacancy within a Local Letting 
Scheme, reference check delay from another housing provider (housing 
association), temporary loss of IT following Hatfield office relocation, and delays 
incurred with a buy back property requiring additional works prior to letting. These 
issues have been reviewed and the expectations are positive that average 
turnaround times for standard voids will be within target for the year.  

KPI  Qrtly 
volume/ 
number 

Qrtly 
 KPI 

result 

KPI 12 
mth 

move.av 

→trend 
(12mths 
move.av) 

KPI  
YTD 

Target 
(YTD) 

Toler-
ance 
(YTD) 

On 
Target 

for 
YTD 

Average void 

property re-let 

time (days) for 

'Standard' 

voids 

42 20.0 18.3 ↓ 20.0 21.0 23.0  

% stock vacant 

due to 

‘standard’ 

26 0.29% 0.18% ↓ 0.29% 0.33% 0.35%  

Page 9



- 6 - 

voids  

% stock vacant 

due to 

‘major/policy’ 

voids 

52 0.58% 0.49% ↓ 0.58% 0.60% 0.70%  

% of rental 

income loss 

due to vacant 

dwellings  

£96,169 0.74% 0.65% ↓ 0.74% 0.60% 0.70%  

 

3.7 Classification of Voids 

3.8 Benchmarked performance compares how an organisation is performing against 
its peers for standard voids. As previously reported our performance was ranked 
the best in this category for 2015/16.  

3.9 There are 3 terms in which a void is defined or categorised. In most cases these 
will be ‘standard’ (i.e. routine) which are benchmarked. However, a void could be 
classified as ‘major works’ or a ‘policy void’ if appropriate. Major work and Policy 
voids tend to be empty or delayed for strategic reasons.  

3.10 Policy Voids  

3.11 At the end of June 2016 there were 29 properties vacant in this category. These 
include: 

 High Value Voids that have been earmarked for sale which once sold will 
be removed from our asset base 

 Property being used as a temporary decant whilst essential repair and 
improvement is carried out at the tenant’s main tenancy address 

 Property empty for remodelling or redevelopment 

 Property empty for use by a partner organisation (GAP scheme) 

3.12 Policy voids may therefore never result in being re-let and for this reason are 
excluded from turnaround performance.  However policy voids are all reflected as 
void rent losses until they are no longer in the ownership of the council.  The main 
impact here is where properties are scheduled for demolition and continue to show 
as a void loss until they are demolished and removed from our accounting 
systems. 

3.13 Major Works 

3.14 At the end of June 2016 there were 23 properties vacant in this category. These 
include: 

 Fire damaged property requiring extensive rebuilding works 

Page 10



- 7 - 

 Asbestos removal to HSE guidelines 

 Property undergoing major adaptation for disabled household 

 Property affected by severe damp problems 

 Property awaiting structural survey 

 Property requiring structural alterations and improvement works 

3.15 Major works and Policy voids are reviewed regularly through weekly void 
management meetings. In addition, a strategic voids review is scheduled to take 
place every six weeks with senior management from all service areas.  

3.16 Standard voids are much more fluid and there is a high turnover of properties. Of 
the 52 cases categorised as major/policy voids at the end of the reporting period 
2016/17, 29 were classed as ‘policy’ voids. These voids may not result in being re-
let as previously highlighted. They will however continue to be included in the 
performance data until the status has changed (i.e. removed from the asset base, 
if sold for example). 

   

2015/16 

Total as at 31st 

March 2016 

2016/17 

Total as at end of 

reporting period 

Total number of properties vacant at period 

end due to ‘standard’ voids 
14 26 

Total number of properties vacant at period 

end due to ‘major/policy’ voids 
48 52 

 

4 Benchmarking 

 

Trust 
performance 

2015/16 

HouseMark 
ALL 

HouseMark 
ALMO 

 Trust 
position 

Top quartile 
figure 

Trust 
position 

Top 
quartile 
figure 

Average void 
property relet time 
(days) for 
'Standard' voids 

17.72 1st 18.59 1st 17.78 

% of rental income 
loss due to vacant 
dwellings 

0.61% 2nd 0.60% 1st 0.63% 

 

4.1 This benchmarking comparisons show that the performance in this area was the 
best it could be when measured against our peers for 2015/16. This does reflect a 
lot of positive measures and effective team working in recent years.  

5 Audit 

Page 11



- 8 - 

5.1 Regular monitoring takes place and performance is reviewed through monthly and 
quarterly reports by officers (through Operational Management Team and 
Leadership Team) and Board Members (Services Committee), as well as CHPP 
itself.    

5.2 In addition the management of voids has been separately audited by SIAS 
(Shared Internal Audit Service) to independently assess the effectiveness of the 
void management processes.  The independent and impartial audit by SIAS 
(September 2015) assessed the service with a rating of ‘substantive assurance’. 
The excellence performance results achieved for 2015/16 are consistent with the 
level of confidence in the service identified by the audit. 

5.3 Internal audit provides an independent and objective opinion on the organisation’s 
governance arrangements, encompassing internal control and risk management, 
by completing an annual risk-based audit plan. The audit of Voids Management in 
September 2015 was a scheduled assurance-based review following on from the 
approved 2015/16 Audit Plan. SIAS provided overall Substantial Assurance that 
effective controls are in operation for those elements of the service covered by the 
audit review, namely: 

 Policy and procedures 

 Voids processes 

 Discretionary payments to tenants 

Page 12



- 9 - 

Appendix B 
WELWYN HATFIELD COMMUNITY HOUSING TRUST 
CABINET AND HOUSING PLANNING PANEL 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONS 
 
TENANTS PANEL 
 
The Tenants Panel was established more than twenty years ago in response to the 
contemporary national emphasis on tenant empowerment and participation.  The 
Council’s Panel was devised to represent the interests of the borough’s council tenants, 
to act as a sounding-board for new housing services and to help drive improvements in 
the customer experience.  Welwyn Hatfield has always enjoyed the benefit of a very 
active Panel and its areas of interest have been wide, maturing into full scrutiny over the 
life of the Panel. 
 
The Panel was initially formed from a body of volunteer tenants but has evolved to 
become an elected body of twenty seven members, including leaseholders.  Members 
serve a two year term before they must be re-elected and receive training to help build 
their capacity to fulfil their role.  Under changes to the constitution, ratified at this year’s 
AGM, members can serve a maximum term of eight years, after which time they must 
take a two year break before standing for re-election. 
 
The Government’s approach to tenant empowerment has evolved over time and is 
probably best described by the Homes and Communities Agency’s ‘Tenant Involvement 
& Empowerment’ Standard (2012).  Whilst aimed at Registered Providers, this document 
is the blueprint for tenant involvement and empowerment generally and describes well 
the work of the Welwyn Hatfield Tenants Panel. 
 
The Standard is concise and sets out a range of ‘required outcomes’ for tenants in the 
arena of customer service, involvement and valuing of diversity.  Specifically, the 
Standard requires that “tenants are given a wide range of opportunities to influence and 
be involved in: 
 

 the formulation of their landlord’s housing related policies and strategic priorities  

 the making of decisions about how housing related services are delivered, 
including the setting of service standards the scrutiny of their landlord’s 
performance and the making of recommendations to their landlord about how 
performance might be improved 

 the management of their homes, where applicable  

 the management of repair and maintenance services, such as commissioning and 
undertaking a range of repair tasks, as agreed with landlords, and the sharing in 
savings made, and 

 agreeing local offers for service delivery.” 
 
It may be said that the Tenants Panel has enjoyed a developed role in ensuring the 
requirements above since its inception and, in many ways, has exceeded the Standard.  
For example, Tenants Panel Members attend SOSC and EOSC as part of their role as 
representing council tenants. 
 
To consolidate the Tenants Panel’s development and to ensure its continued relevance, 
an independent review of the Tenants Panel was carried out by Campbell Tickell during 
2015-16.  It should be reiterated that this review of the Tenants Panel was a wholly self-
contained piece of work and in no way connected to the wider Review of the Community 
Housing Trust.  As may be expected, this review of the Panel was carried out in 

Page 13



- 10 - 

partnership with Tenants Panel members and generated many recommendations for 
change.   
 
A key recommendation of the review was for a more formal approach to scrutinising the 
services provided by Welwyn Hatfield Community Housing Trust and its contractors.  
Tenants Panel scrutiny projects are carried out by a sub-committee of the Tenants Panel, 
with the service area to be reviewed being chosen by the Tenants Panel as a whole. 
 
The first scrutiny exercise/service review focused on the Welfare Gardening Scheme and 
the final report was released to the Tenants Panel at its July meeting.  The 
recommendations were positively received and the Trust Management is now formulating 
its response in much the same way that management would respond to an audit.  It is 
intended that any recommendations for service improvement arising from the service 
review will be fed back to CHPP and the Trust’s Management Board.  As would be 
expected, the Trust will be charged with implementing the recommendations and the 
CHPP will monitor the Trust’s implementation.   
 
Other Tenants Panel activities include choosing Neighbourhood Improvement Scheme 
projects (minor environmental projects), following bids made by tenants and commenting 
on new customer-facing policies as they are being developed by the Trust.   
 
The Tenants Panel has a Communications Committee, meeting quarterly, which acts as 
an editorial group for the tenants’ magazine, ‘Your Voice’ and an Environmental 
Committee, which has a say on issues affecting local neighbourhoods, such as tree 
management, footpaths and refuse collection. 
 
Since the launch of Welwyn Hatfield Community Housing Trust in 2010 the role of the 
Tenants Panel has evolved further.  Tenants who contributed to the Panel have become 
Board Members, building on some of the skills that they have developed as part of the 
body.  This arrangement has been in place since the creation of the Trust in 2010 but is 
being reviewed as part of an overall review of Tenants Panel governance, to take place 
over the coming months. 
 
 

Page 14



- 11 - 

Appendix C 

WELWYN HATFIELD COMMUNITY HOUSING TRUST 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT REPORTING – Quarter ONE 

 
Total stock owned, acquired and sold through RTB by stock size 

 
 

RENT COLLECTION & ARREARS RECOVERY 
 
ID KPI  Qrtly 

volume/ 
number 

Qrtly 
 KPI 

result 

KPI 12 
mth 

move.av 

→trend 

(12mths 
move.av) 

KPI  
YTD 

Target 
(YTD) 

Toler-
ance 
(YTD) 

On 
Target 

for 
YTD 

 Rent collected 
as % of rent 
owed 

£13.2 
million 

102.2% 99.8% ↑ 
102.2% 100.0% 99.80%  

 
 

 

Trust 
performance 

2015/16 

HouseMark 
ALL 

HouseMark 
ALMO 

 Trust 
position 

Top quartile 
figure 

Trust 
position 

Top 
quartile 
figure 

Current tenant rent arrears 
as a % of the total ARD at 
period end  1.03% 1st 1.66% 1st 1.18% 

Rent collected as % of rent 
owed 

100.34% 1st 100.21% 1st 99.93% 

 

 

Rented stock Lease-
holder 
stock 

Grand 
total 
stock 

managed 

 Acquired 
stock 
through 
‘buy-
back’ 

Stock 
sold 
through 
RTB 
scheme 

 

General 
Needs  

Sheltered Total 
 

2016-17 2016-17 

Bedsit 183 4 187 58 245    

One Bedroom 1045 871 1916 592 2508   -3 

Two Bedroom 1835 831 2666 515 3181  4 -6 

Three 
bedroom 

3881 4 3885 90 3975  3 -5 

Four Bedroom 287 0 287 0 287   -1 

Five Bedroom 11 0 11 0 11    

Six Bedroom 4 0 4 0 4    

 

7246 1710 8956 1255 10211  7 -15 

Page 15



- 12 - 

 
MANAGING UNDER OCCUPATION 
ID KPI  Qrtly 

 KPI 
result 

KPI  
YTD 

Target 
(YTD) 

Tolerance 
(YTD) 

On 
Target 
for YTD 

End of 
year 

target 

 Number of under 
occupying hseholds 
moved to smaller 
homes 

24 24 20 17  80 

 

 
2015/16 
results 

This quarter 
results 

2016/17 
YTD 

Total households affected by under occupation 
and housing benefit reduction at period end 

610 - 622 

Total number of households requesting 
assistance to move at the end of the period 

128 - 101 

Number of under occupying households moved 
to smaller accommodation within the period 

Method of move by: 

71 24 24 

Transfers 57 9 9 

Mutual exchanges 14 15 15 

% of households wanting to move, actually 
assisted, within the period 

36% 19% 19% 

 

Comments by exception 
 
No exceptions to report 
 
Further actions – We are carrying out a review of underoccupation cases and this is likely to 
result in an increase in the number of households seeking assistance to downsize, especially 
given the expansion of the government’s welfare reform programme and over time, changes in 
household composition.  The greatest impacts will be felt by households becoming subject to the 
spare room subsidy rules and  a further reduction in the benefits  

 

Page 16



- 13 - 

 
Gas safety compliance and repairs 
ID KP

I 
 Qrtly 

volume
/ 

number 

Qrtly 
 KPI 

result 

KPI 12 
mth 

move.a
v 

→trend 

(12mths 
move.av

) 

KPI  
YTD 

Target 
(YTD) 

Toler-
ance 
(YTD) 

On 
Targe
t for 
YTD 

Gas servicing  

35 % of 
properties 
with a valid 
gas safety 
certificate 

9008 
99.94

% 
99.90% ↔ 99.94

% 
100% 

99.50
% 

 

36  % servicing 
Appointmen
ts Made & 
Kept 

2665 
99.66

% 
99.27% ↔ 99.66

% 
95.00

% 
92.00

% 
 

46  % 
Customer 
Satisfaction 
with 
servicing 

860 
86.62

% 
88.84% ↓ 86.63

% 
92.00

% 
90.00

% 
 

TSG responsive repairs service 

34 Responsive 
Repairs - % 
Appointmen
ts Made & 
Kept 

4080 
99.14

% 
98.55% ↑ 99.14 

95.00
% 

90.00
% 

 

47 Responsive 
Repairs - % 
First Visit 
Fix 

3223 
86.50

% 
87.52% ↓ 

86.50
% 

85.00
% 

80.00
% 

 

 

Responsive Repairs service  
ID KPI  Qrtly 

vol / no. 
Qrtly 
 KPI 

result 

KPI 12 
mth 

moving 
av 

→tre

nd (12 
mth 

movin
g av) 

KPI  
YTD 

Target 
(YTD) 

Toler-
ance 
(YTD) 

YT
D 

Responsive repairs completed on time  

29 % 
Emergency 
repairs 
completed on 
time 

1442 100.00% 
100.00

% ↔ 100.00% 99.00% 98.00%  

30 % Urgent 
repairs 
completed on 
time 

378 100.00% 99.57% ↑ 100.00% 98.00% 97.00%  

31 % Routine 
repairs 
completed on 
time 

4565 99.98% 99.62% ↑ 99.98% 98.00% 96.00%  

49 % of ALL 
response 
repairs 
completed on 
time  

6385 99.98% 99.71% ↑ 99.98% 98.00% 96.00%  

Page 17



- 14 - 

First visit fix completions 

48 % completed 
as ‘first visit 
fix’ 

5066 94.02% 91.77% ↑ 94.02% 90.00% 88.00%  

Repair appointment service 

32 Appointments 
kept as a % 
of 
appointments 
made 

9181 96.61% 96.24% ↑ 96.61% 95.00% 92.00%  

Customer satisfaction 

33 % customers 
satisfied with 
the 
completed 
repair  

451 92.90% 93.32% ↓ 92.90% 92.00% 90.00%  

37 % customers 
satisfied with 
the reporting 
of the repair 
to the Repair 
Centre Team 

804 94.15% 91.73% ↑ 94.15% 95.00% 90.00%  

 
 

Responsive repairs service 

 

2015/16 

total 

This 
quarter  

period 
total 

2016/
17  

YTD 
total 

Emergency repairs completed 7765 1442 1442 

Urgent repairs completed 3254 378 378 

Routine repairs completed 21185 4565 4565 

Total responsive repairs completed 32204 6385 6385 

Total repairs completed as ‘first visit fix’ 19796 4773 4773 

Total repair appointments made 27683 9181 9181 

Total repair appointments kept 28788 8881 8881 

Total customer satisfaction surveys received relating to 
completion of a repair 2400 451 451 

Total customer satisfaction surveys received relating to the 
reporting of a repair to the Repair Centre Team 

1538 
(since 

Nov ’15) 804 804 

 
Comments by exception 
 
KPI 37- % customers satisfied with the reporting of the repair to the Repair Centre Team. 
Despite there being an upward trend in performance, a key issue identified has been diagnosis 
of the repair when initially reported. Action has been taken and the repairs advisors have carried 
out job shadowing with contractor’s supervisors to increase their technical knowledge in support 
of diagnosis. 

 

Page 18



- 15 - 

INDEPENDENT LIVING 
ID KPI  Qrtly 

volume/ 
number 

Qrtly 
 KPI 

result 

KPI 12 
mth 

move.av 

→trend 

(12mths 
move.av) 

KPI  
YTD 

Target 
(YTD) 

Toler-
ance 
(YTD) 

On 
Target 

for 
YTD 

Mobile warden emergency call service 

 Average time 
(mins) for 
mobile 
warden to 
attend 
emergency 
alarm call 

80 11.84 11.23 ↑ 11.84 12.0 13.0  

 
HOMELESSNESS & TEMPORARY ACCOMMODATION 
ID KPI  Qrtly 

volume/ 
number 

Qrtly 
 KPI 

result 

KPI 12 
mth 

move.av 

→trend 

(12mths 
move.av) 

KPI  
YTD 

Targe
t 

(YTD) 

Toler-
ance 
(YTD) 

On 
Target 

for 
YTD 

4 Average length of 
stay in Temporary 
Accommodation 
(TA) (weeks) 

34 14.7 14.0 ↑ 14.7 12.0 13.0  

 Number of duty 
hseholds in TA at 
period end 

- 63 73 ↔ 63 55 60  

5 Average days to 
make a homeless 
decision 

44 22.3 29.9 ↓ 22.3 28 33  

 
Homelessness decisions 

Decision 
2015/16 

total This quarter period total 2016/17 YTD total 

Total number fully accepted with a 
duty to house 

159 30 30 

Total number eligible but duty 
rejected 

50 14 14 

Not eligible 1 0 0 

 
Total decisions made 
 

210 44 44 

% of decisions made actually 
accepted  

76% 68% 68% 

Page 19



- 16 - 

Homelessness acceptance reasons 
 

Primary reason 2015/1
6 

total 

2015/16 

% 

This 
quarter 
period 
total 

2016/17 
YTD  

total 

2016/17 
YTD  

% 

Parents/relatives/friends eviction 40 25% 9 9 30% 

Relationship breakdown (violent & 
non-violent) 

44 28% 5 5 17% 

Harassment/Violent associated 
persons 

2 1% 1 1 3% 

Mortgage arrears 0 0% 0 0 0% 

Rent Arrears 4 3% 1 1 3% 

Loss of private accommodation (AST) 35 22% 2 2 7% 

Loss of other accommodation ( non-
secure occupancy) 

27 17% 9 9 30% 

Other reasons (emergency 
circumstances) 

7 4% 3 3 10% 

Total 159 100% 30 30 100% 

 

Comments by exception 

 
There has been an increase in households presenting to the team due to loss of private rented 
accommodation and parental evictions.  There is also a relationship between these two causes – 
in a number of cases households are returning to the parental homes after being evicted from 
private rented accommodation and then are subsequently also evicted from the parental home.  
We are also seeing a higher number of single parents with small children being evicted from the 
parental home.  We have also seen an increase in loss of accommodation with no security. 
 
This increased case-load has the effect of lengthening decision making times, as staff resources 
become spread more thinly, whilst (in the case of family and other vulnerable households) 
increasing the demand on temporary accommodation. 
 
We have seen a blockage with move on from temporary accommodation due to the high demand 
for accommodation and the lack of availability within the choice based lettings system and the 
private rented sector. 
 
In addition we do have cases that we have acknowledged are not ready for independent living 
and have referred them to supported housing projects, such as Mike Mably House and the Small 
Steps scheme  at the Foyer.  We are reliant on spaces becoming available before we can move 
them on. 
 
We are seeing an increase in parental evictions, this is due to families returning home after losing 
private rented accommodation, in addition there are single parents with children between ages 
6months and 3years and the parents have now decided to ask them to leave.   
 

Page 20



- 17 - 

HOUSING NEEDS REGISTER 
 

COMBINED 

Entitled to 
single/ 
couple 
accom. 

Entitled to 
older 

person(s) 
accom 

Entitled to  
2 bed non-

family 
accom 

Entitled to 
2 bed 
family 
accom 

Entitled to 
3 bed 
family 
accom 

Entitled to 
4+ bed 
family 
accom 

Total: 

Band A 19 14 0 4 2 1 40 

Band B 33 94 19 45 37 13 241 

Band C 45 17 6 132 79 18 297 

Band D 657 25 3 81 175 15 956 

Band E 63 167 9 12 7 1 259 

Sum: 817 317 37 274 300 48 1793 

 
 

 

Entitled to 
single/ 
couple 
accom. 

Entitled to 
older 
person(s) 
accom 

Entitled to  
2 bed 
non-family 
accom 

Entitled to 
2 bed 
family 
accom 

Entitled to 
3 bed 
family 
accom 

Entitled to 
4+ bed 
family 
accom 

Total: 

Total Home seekers 722 156 11 217 155 19 1280 

Total Transfer 95 161 26 57 145 29 513 

 
1.1.1. Average waiting time for rehousing applicants for 2016/17 YTD by property type 

 

Type / Size No. of Lets Shortest wait Longest wait Average wait 

Sheltered accomm. 40 14 days 3 years 10 months 

Studio general needs 8 11 weeks 26 months 15 months 

1-bed general needs 40 11 days 11 years 17 months 

2-bed flat or maisonette 19 7 weeks 15 months 5 months 

2-bed house 29 14 days 3 years 11 months 

3-bed flat or maisonette 2 13 weeks 6 years 35 months 

3-bed house 38 10 weeks 7 years 7 months 

4-bed 1 20 months 20 months 20 months 

5-bed 0       
 

 

Page 21



- 18 - 

 
CUSTOMER SATISFACTION  
KPI  Qrtly 

volume/ 
number 

Qrtly 
 KPI 

result 

KPI 12 
mth 

move.av 

→trend 
(12mths 
move.av) 

KPI  
YTD 

Target 
(YTD) 

Toler-
ance 
(YTD) 

On 
Target 

for 
YTD 

New Tenant satisfaction survey 

Before being housed, 
satisfaction with how 
the Trust dealt with 
you and your 
application 

12 100% 95% ↑ 100% 90% 85%  

After being offered a 
home, satisfaction with 
helpfulness of Trust 
staff 

12 100% 95% ↔ 100% 90% 85%  

Satisfaction with the 
home being an 
acceptable standard 

12 100% 91% ↑ 
100% 90% 85%  

 
KPI  Qrtly 

num-
ber 

Qrtly 
 KPI 

result 

STAR 
2014 
result 

Change 
from 
last 

STAR 

KPI  
YTD 

Target 
for 

Qrt2 

On 
target 

Target 
for 

Qrt4  

Tolerance 
Qrt4 

Pulse STAR survey (Customer satisfaction perception survey) 

Overall satisfaction 
with the Trust 428 82% 81% ↑ 82% 81% 

 
85% 83% 

Satisfaction with 
views being 
listened to and 
acted upon 

428 62% 60% ↑ 62% 60% 

 

68% 66% 

Satisfaction with 
the ability of staff 
to deal with 
queries 

428 77% 71% ↑ 
77% 71% 

 

75% 73% 

Satisfaction with 
the quality of the 
home 

428 77% 79% ↓ 
77% 79% 

 
83% 81% 

Satisfaction with 
the repairs and 
maintenance 
service 

428 72% 72% ↔ 
72% 72% 

 

78% 76% 

Satisfaction with 
the neighbourhood 
as a place to live 

428 83% 84% ↓ 83% 84% 
 

88% 85% 

Satisfaction with 
the rent providing 
value for money 

428 77% 76% ↑ 
77% 76% 

 
82% 80% 

 

Page 22



- 19 - 

 

Comments on customer satisfaction 
 
Satisfaction generally shows signs of improvement.  There are two indicators which go against 
this trend: ‘satisfaction with the quality of the home’ and ‘satisfaction with the neighbourhood as a 
place to live’. 
 
‘Satisfaction with the quality of the home’ is the only indicator yet to stabilise or make progress 
and has yielded a number of comments about exterior decoration, requests for kitchen and 
bathroom refurbs and communal area concerns.  All of these have been responded to 
individually. 
 
‘Satisfaction with the neighbourhood as a place to live’ has attracted general comments about 
hedges, condition of roads and pathways, anti-social behaviour and public transport.  Managers 
are working with Council colleagues to understand where and how this perception may be 
influenced in partnership.   
 
More information will be submitted to subsequent committees. 
 

 

CUSTOMER COMPLAINTS, COMPLIMENTS AND MEMBER ENQUIRIES  
 
ID KPI  Qrtly 

volume/ 
number 

Qrtly 
 KPI 

result 

KPI 12 
mth 

move.av 

→trend 

(12mths 
move.av) 

KPI  
YTD 

Target 
(YTD) 

Toler-
ance 
(YTD) 

On 
Target 

for 
YTD 

COMPLAINTS - KPI for responding to complaints within target of 10 working days 

 % within target 
stage one 49 98.0% 90.71% ↑ 98.0% 90% 85%  

 % within target 
stage two and 
LGO 

6 83.3% 95.6% ↔ 83.3% 90% 85%  

MEMBER ENQUIRIES - KPI for responding to member enquiries within target of 10 
working days 

 % within target 
64 90.6% 91.3% ↑ 90.6% 90% 85%  

 
 

Number received and closed 

   

2015/16 

total 

This quarter  

period total 

2016/17 

 YTD total 

CUSTOMER COMPLAINTS 

Number of cases received 307 60 60 

Number of cases closed  343 55 55 

Number of active cases at end of reporting period 26 31 - 

MEMBER ENQUIRIES 

Number of cases received 200 75 75 

Number of cases closed  246 64 64 

Number of active cases at end of reporting period 30 43 - 

CUSTOMER COMPLIMENTS 

Number of compliments received 156 35 35 
 

Page 23



- 20 - 

Complaints and Member enquiries closed by service category 
 

 

Complaints Member enquiries TOTAL closed 

  

No. 
2016/17  

YTD 

% of 
grand 

total YTD 

Number 
2016/17 

YTD 

% of 
grand 

total YTD 

Number 
2016/17 

YTD 

% of 
grand 

total YTD 

Responsive Maintenance  17 30.9% 24 37.5% 41 34.5% 

Specialist Maintenance  21 38.2% 7 10.9% 28 23.5% 

Planned Maintenance  7 12.7% 3 4.7% 10 8.4% 

Maintenance sub-total 45 81.8% 34 53.1% 79 66.4% 

Area Housing Management 4 7.3% 7 10.9% 11 9.2% 

Housing Needs/HNR 
Application  

3 5.5% 23 35.9% 26 21.8% 

Community Development/ASB  0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 

Rents, leasehold & RTB 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 

Welfare Services  3 5.5% 0 0.0% 3 2.5% 

Operations sub-total 10 18.2% 30 46.9% 40 33.6% 

Grand total 55 100.0% 64 100.0% 119 100.0% 

 
Complaints closed by stage/level of complaint 

 
2015/16  

total 
This quarter 
period total 

2016/17  
YTD total 

Stage one 326 49 49 

Stage two 17 6 6 

Stage LGO 0 0 0 

Total 343 55 55 

 
Nature of complaints closed by summarised service category 

   

2015/16  
total 

This quarter  
period total 

2016/17  
YTD total 

Lack of service/service failure  81 
 

42 42 

Staff rude/ unhelpful  20 
 

0 0 

Treated unfairly/banding issues  42 
 

5 5 

Poor workmanship / quality  200 
 

8 8 

Not provided   0 
 

0 
 

Total     343 
 

55 55 
 

Complaints feedback 
ID KPI  Qrtly 

volume/ 
number 

Qrtly 
 KPI 

result 

KPI 12 
mth 

move.av 

→trend 
(12mths 
move.av) 

KPI  
YTD 

Target 
(YTD) 

Toler-
ance 
(YTD) 

On 
Target 
YTD 

Customer complaints satisfaction survey results 

 % found it easy to 
complain 

18 77.8% 85.3% ↔ 77.8% 80% 75%  

 % happy with how 
the problem was 
resolved 

18 55.6% 67.3% ↑ 55.6% 80% 75%  

 % happy with the 
way complaint was 
handled 

18 61.1% 73.0% ↑ 61.1% 80% 75%  

 % felt treated fairly 
18 72.2% 74.5% ↑ 72.2% 80% 75%  

 

Page 24



- 21 - 

Outcome of complaints 

 

YTD 

   

YTD 

 
  Fully upheld 19 

 % fully/partially upheld 49% 
 

  Partially upheld 15 
 

 
  Not upheld 35 

 
Number fully/partially upheld 34 

 

  Total 69 

 
 

Customer survey activity 

   

2015/16  
total 

This quarter  
period total 

2016/17  
YTD total 

Number of customer satisfaction 
surveys received  

85 
 

18 18 

 

 

Comments by exception  
 
% of stage two complaints responded to within target is showing as 83.3%, below the target of 
90%, due to one case out of the six being responded to five days after the expected date. The 
case involved a complexity of repair issues that have since been addressed.  
 
Customer satisfaction feedback for three out of the four KPIs are showing lower than expected. 
Whilst it is pleasing to see a trend of improvement, the target is still some way off. 
 
Overall, the number of surveys received are low and we need to improve this.  The two key areas 
of concern expressed through customer feedback relate to communication and the customer 
feeling dissatisfied with being kept informed, and the time taken to address the customer’s 
concerns. This continues to be a priority.   
 
We note there is an even split between those complaints that are upheld and those that are not.  
This may account for the low satisfaction reading on the % happy with the way the complaint was 
resolved.   
 
These concerns relate to a small number of the responsive repair cases closed in the period. This 
service has the highest volume of customer contact across the Trust and is a top priority service 
for customers. The team have closed a total of 41 complaints and member enquiries in this 
reporting period, retaining an acceptable response performance for the majority of cases.   
 
In the previous quarter’s report to Committee, it was indicated that, as part of the STAR survey 
action plan, an end-to-end review of the complaints process would be carried out and this has 
now been completed. A number of issues were identified from the review, the timeliness of 
dealing with complaints being one of them. An action plan has been written addressing all of the 
issues and the recommendations for improvement. 

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Jeremy Morton  
Executive Member: Mandy Perkins 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING AND PLANNING PANEL– 11 AUGUST 2016 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND OPERATIONS 
 
UPDATE ON THE COUNCILS AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROGRAMME (AHP) 
 
1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the Councils Affordable 
Housing Programme (AHP). Updates will be provided to this committee twice a 
year.  

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 It is recommended that the Committee note the content of this report. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 At their meeting of the 4th December 2012 Cabinet agreed a range of methods to 
deliver the Councils Affordable Housing Programme (AHP). And that a 
monitoring report should be presented to this committee, setting out the budget 
and progress in delivering new affordable homes.  An overview of progress to 
date and a more detailed monitoring report setting out current schemes are 
attached at Appendix A and B. 

3.2 The AHP is managed via an officer project group which meets monthly and 
overseen by a steering group which meets bi – monthly. The Executive Member 
for Planning, Housing and Community is a member of the steering group which 
provide strategic direction, considers the budget and recommends any 
reallocation of funds between different delivery methods as required. 

3.3 A strategic review of the Affordable Housing Programme was completed in 
February 2016 and in June 2016 Cabinet approved the proposed Vision 
Statement, key aims and a delivery plan to deliver 600 affordable homes by 
2021.  The Delivery Plan is attached at Appendix C for information.  

Implications 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 The Council has signed an agreement with the government to deliver the AHP 
using the available Right to Buy Receipts in accordance with the rules in the 
agreement. 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 The budget for the programme is monitored through the normal budgetary control 
reports and by a detailed review each quarter, prior to the quarterly returns made 
to the government.  The format of this is currently being reviewed and a full 
financial summary will be presented with the next report. 

Page 27

Agenda Item 8



- 2 - 

5.2 In summary there have been 338 RtB sales to date and retained receipts of 
£20,381,380.  We have plans to fully utilise these receipts during the programme 
period.  The accrued interest penalty on unused receipts (should we not meet our 
spending targets) were £1,032,094 at the end of Quarter One. 

5.3 The capital budget for the programme this financial year is £22,795,000 (which 
includes a roll forward from last year of £9,496,690).  The expenditure and 
commitments at the end of Quarter One were £6,486,999. 

 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 The risks related to this proposal are: 

6.2 The affordable housing Programme has a risk management strategy in place 
which is regularly monitored by the project and Steering Group with separate risk 
registers for each initiative and project. 

6.3 The programme is highlighted on the councils Corporate Risk Register. 

7 Security & Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no direct security and terrorism implications in this report or the 
Affordable Housing Programme  

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no direct procurement implications in relation to this report  

 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 The delivery of new affordable homes provides mechanisms for a range of 
products and initiatives that help reduce carbon emissions and tackle fuel 
poverty. New homes are built to high standards that help address climate change 
concerns including CO2, water and waste reduction; use of local labour and 
transport and modern methods of construction all consider the green footprint. 

10 Link to Corporate Priorities 

10.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority 3 Meet the 
borough’s housing needs and specifically to the council’s statutory requirements 
under the Homelessness legislation. 

11 Equality and Diversity 

11.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out in connection with 
the proposals that are set out in this report. An EIA is in place for the AHP and 
EIAs are carried out for specific initiatives and projects that are part of the AHP 
as required. 

 
Name of author Jeremy Morton  extension 01707 357723 
Title Principal Housing Development Manger 
Date 20th June 2016 

Page 28



- 3 - 

 
 
 
Background papers to be listed  

Cabinet report 4th December 2012 

Cabinet Housing & Planning Panel November 2015 

Cabinet report 14th June Strategic Review Affordable Housing Programme 

Appendix A     Affordable Housing Programme  Overview  

Appendix B     Affordable Housing Programme   

Appendix C     AHP delivery plan  

Appendix D     Financial Monitoring  

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Affordable Housing Programme Overview June 2016 
 

1 
 

Appendix A 
Affordable Housing Programme Overview June 2016 
 

Completed Schemes March 2016  Status/Total Numbers 
Delivered 

Cherry way  new build  Funding  to Paradigm Housing  Completed   4 

Elizabeth Close new build Funding to Welwyn Garden City HA  Completed  3 

Sir Fredrick Osborn new 
build 

Funding to High Town Praetorian  Completed  5 

Phase 1 former garage site 
disposals to Registered 
Provider new build 

Funding to Welwyn Garden City HA Completed  18 

Open Market Purchase A mixture of two, three and four bedroom 
houses, now managed by the Housing Trust 

Completed 41 

Open Market Purchase RP  One and two bedroom flats purchased with grant 
funding 

Completed 2 

 Total Completed 73 

 
 

Current Schemes - targets 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Progress to date 
(June 2016) 

 

Open market purchase 
Council 

37 15 15 Six purchased, 
nine offers 
accepted, six 
further 
properties 
pending offers 

On track to meet 
target  

6 

Garden Avenue 
Direct construction for the 
council 

 22  
 
 

Contract has 
been let, start on 
site in July  

On target 
completion due 
December 2017 

0 

P
age 31



Affordable Housing Programme Overview June 2016 
 

2 
 

Current Schemes - targets 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Progress to date 
(June 2016) 

 

 

Furzen Crescent 
Direct construction for the 
council  
 

 7  Contract has 
been tendered, 
evaluated bids 
and cabinet 
recommendation 
made July 16 

On target  
Completion due 
2018 

0 

Open Market Purchase  
Registered Providers 

18 5 5 Market 
conditions/ 
property prices 
impact on 
purchase 

Behind 
schedule, only 
two properties 
purchased to 
date. 

2 

Phase 2 garage site 
disposals to RP 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 21  Planning 
secured. 
Sites tendered 
to Registered 
Provider (RP) 
Framework 
group; 
RP bids 
evaluated and 
provider 
selected  

On target 
Land 
transfers/site 
assembly to 
start; 
Initial  target for 
completion  late 
2017 

0 

P
age 32



Affordable Housing Programme Overview June 2016 
 

3 
 

Current Schemes - targets 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Progress to date 
(June 2016) 

 

 
 

Phase 3 garage site 
disposal to RP  

  To be 
confirmed 

Corporate 
property 
selecting sites – 
to be agreed and 
signed off at 
steering group  
Planning to be 
secured and 
then sites 
tendered to new 
RP Frame work 
group   

Target numbers 
and dates to be 
set. 
Initial target  for 
completion 2018 
be agreed  
 

0 

North down road – direct 
construction for council  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 16 Resident 
consultations 
completed; 
Planning 
application 
submitted June 
2016; Relocation 
of leaseholders 
agreed with 
asset swap. 
Remaining 
tenants being 
relocated; 
Procurement 
process to 
follow planning 

On target 
Target for 
completion 
18/19 

0 

P
age 33



Affordable Housing Programme Overview June 2016 
 

4 
 

Current Schemes - targets 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Progress to date 
(June 2016) 

 

 

Little Mead – direct 
construction for council  

 7  Feasibility work 
completed on 
former garage 
site;  Pre 
application 
meetings 
agreed; Cabinet 
report prepared 
for land 
assembly 
approval    

On target.  
Target for 
completion 2018 

 

Sheltered Housing  / 
scheme options review – 
direct construction for 
council 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Initial work on 
existing 
schemes 
completed. 
Linked as part of 
the asset review 
and older 
person housing 
needs survey 
and strategy –
medium – longer 
term initiative – 
number to be 
agreed and 
timescales   

3 possible sites 
being 
considered for 
possible 
redevelopment, 
either general 
needs 
accommodation 
or new older 
person housing 
– or 
refurbishment of 
existing units  
Council owned 
sites  
 

 

P
age 34



Affordable Housing Programme Overview June 2016 
 

5 
 

Current Schemes - targets 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Progress to date 
(June 2016) 

 

 

All saints site WGC direct 
construction for council  

  9 In negotiation 
with Diocese of 
St Albans  

In negotiation, 
no agreement 
reached 

0 

Onslow school site  - 
funding to RP 

  10 In negotiation 
with Home 
group to provide 
additional 
homes on a 
wider resi 
development 60 
-70 homes 

On target; 
negotiations 
underway  
 

0 

Cash Incentive Scheme  5 5 Scheme 
proposals being 
developed 

On target; 
research 
underway 

0 

 
 

P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Appendix B 
 
Affordable Housing Programme (AHP)  
 

AHP Progress June 2016 (schemes underway) Total units 

 
The Council submitted planning applications for a second phase of former 
garage sites for disposal to the councils Registered Provider framework group. 
All six schemes have been approved and these are to be progressed with 
Welwyn Garden City Housing Association. Initial meetings have been held with 
WGCHA to progress a range of issues including land transfers. 
 
Knightsfield / the Firs:   2 x 2 bedroom bungalows 
Little Ganett :                1 x 2 bed house 
Birchwood close :         1 x 2 bed house and 1 x 3 bed house 
Cowper Road WGC:    3 x 2 bed bungalows 
Breakmead  WGC:       5 x 3 bed houses  
Hillcrest Hatfield :         8 x 2 bed houses 
 
Examples below : 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
21 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Little Ganett 1 x 2 bed house 

 

Birchwood Close 1 x 2 bed 
house and 1 x 3 bed house 

 

Cowper Road 3 x 2 bed 
bungalows 

Page 37



 
 
Council Direct Construction 
The Council has obtained planning approval on two former garage sites at 
Garden Avenue and Furzen Crescent in Hatfield. Mears New Homes have 
been selected as construction partner to deliver Garden Avenue with a start on 
site expected imminently. A formal opening event is being arranged. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Furzen Crescent has been tendered and evaluation of the bids completed. A 
recommendation for the selection of construction partner was made to July 
Cabinet following Procurement Board consideration on the 21st June  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A planning application has been submitted for the provision of 16 new self 
contained flats in Northdown Road on the site of existing low demand bedsits.   
Negotiations are complete with 2 existing leaseholders, 3 tenants and the Gap 
Homeless charity which currently leases a bedsit.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Council and RP Open Market Purchases 
We aim to purchase a total of 37 properties during 2016/17.  At the time of 
writing six properties had been purchased a further 15 identified.  We are on 
target to identify all 37 this financial year.  Our RP partners have purchased 4 
and hope to identify 14 more. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
22 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
16 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
37 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Garden Avenue, Hatfield 14 
x 2 bed flats and 8 x 1 bed 
flats 
 

Furzen Crescent, Hatfield 
7 x 2 bed houses 
 

Northdown Road, Hatfield 16 x 1 
bed flats 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 38



 
 
 
Other schemes 
Feasibility work is being undertaken to consider providing 4 x 3 bed houses 
and 3 x 2 bed houses on an underused garage site.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Further Opportunities 

 

 The Council is currently working with Home Housing Group as part of 
their proposal to deliver 70+ homes on part of the Onslow school site in 
Hatfield. A minimum of 30% of these homes must be delivered as part 
of the planning requirement and without grant. The council is able to 
fund any additional units above this percentage.  Detailed negotiation 
with Home on exact numbers is to be agreed. A planning application is 
anticipated in August 2016.  

 

 Initial discussions are being held with All Saints Church in WGC that 
may offer the opportunity to provide 9 x 2 bed houses and reprovide a 
new community facility that meets current and future use 

 
 
 
7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

Little Mead 4 x 3 bed 
and 3 x 2 bed houses 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C 

Affordable Housing Programme Delivery Plan 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

2016 to 2020 
 

Our Vision  
 

To provide a range of high quality affordable homes which meet the 
housing needs of our residents 

 
Executive Summary 
 

 The council has a corporate objective to provide additional affordable homes 
to meet the needs of our community.  This Delivery Plan sets out our plans for 
delivering affordable homes over the next five years.  

 
 There are significant benefits derived from providing additional affordable 

homes, including reducing the impact of homelessness and unsuitable 
housing conditions, and delivering high quality energy efficient life time 
homes. 

 
 72 new homes have been provided to date and the council aims to provide a 

total of 600 affordable homes via its Affordable Housing Programme between 
2014 and 2021 

 
 As a social landlord, the council wants to ensure that it sustains its housing 

stock to meet local housing need and to ensure that it continues to operate a 
cost effective service.  On this basis a proportion of the homes delivered will 
be retained by the council. 

 
 The Affordable Housing Programme delivers homes via a number of methods 

including: 
 

 open market purchase (OMP) 
 disposal of brownfield sites to Registered Providers (RPs) 
 direct funding/construction for council ownership  
 windfall opportunities, including additional value on Section 106 sites 

 
 

 There are a number of key strategic sites in the borough, where plans are 
coming forward for large scale development, but viability issues may make it 
difficult to provide the number of affordable housing units required by planning 
policy.  The Affordable Housing Programme has an opportunity to bridge this 
gap. 

 
 The schemes identified to meet the target homes are set out in Appendix B.  

This shows the number of projected units by year and by delivery strand. 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



2 

 

 
 
Introduction 
 
There is a high level of housing need locally and providing affordable homes is a 
priority for the council.  The Strategic Housing Market Assessment (updated 2015) 
concludes that there is an Objective Assessment of Need for new homes ranging 
between 664 and 707 new dwellings per annum.  The evidence suggests that there 
is a sizeable current need for affordable homes per annum over the next five years, 
including a backlog of unmet housing need. 
 
One of the council’s five corporate objectives – Meet the borough’s housing needs – 
is underpinned by the action ‘Increase the supply of new, affordable homes’  
 
The planning system makes provision for the delivery of affordable homes as part of 
all new homes delivered.  The existing District Plan policy requirement for affordable 
housing is 30% on all eligible sites.  However viability work to inform the new Local 
Plan indicates that a more refined approach will be required going forward to reflect 
varying degrees of viability across the borough.  The Emerging Core Strategy 2012 
indicates that the proposed policy approach would be for 25% affordable housing on 
eligible sites in Hatfield, 30% in Welwyn Garden City and 35% on sites in the 
excluded villages. 
 
Registered Providers may also develop properties using land they have acquired 
with their own funding and/or with funding provided by the Homes and Communities 
Agency. 
 
As part of our commitment to the delivery of new affordable housing, the council has 
an Affordable Housing Programme (AHP) which has been in place since 2012, when 
the government enabled the council to use a proportion of receipts from the sale of 
council homes to fund replacement affordable housing.  The programme provides 
affordable homes over and above those that are provided via the planning system. 
 
Appendix A sets out the benefits of the programme in detail, but a summary of the 
strategic benefits is set out below: 
 

 Addressing housing need and therefore reducing the number of residents 
living in unsuitable housing, for example overcrowding and homelessness 
 

 Reduction in the need for temporary accommodation and thus reduction in the 
risk of requiring expensive and unsuitable Bed and Breakfast accommodation 

 

 Vacant Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) being brought back into use as 
family homes. 

 

 Reduction in anti-social behaviour by targeting sites and improving safety for 
local residents  

 

 Facilitating investment in the borough 
 

 Delivering high quality energy efficient life time homes 
 

Page 42



3 

 

 
Key Aims 

 
Following a review of the programme, a set of key aims has been agreed: 
 

 To provide 600 affordable homes by 2021 
 

 To deliver a proportion of these homes for council ownership  in order to 
sustain the stock of 9000 

 
 To meet the borough’s homeless obligations without the use of Bed and 

Breakfast accommodation 
 

 To increase the supply of affordable homes for those with a local connection 
 

 To provide a range of long term sustainable housing products 
 

 To provide a flexible framework from which to respond to government policy 
direction. 

 
Delivery Methods 
 
The council delivers new affordable homes via a number of methods: 

 
1. Open market purchase (OMP) 

 
2. Disposal of council owned brownfield sites to Registered Providers (RPs) 
 
3. Direct funding/construction for council ownership  
 
4. Windfall opportunities, including achieving additional value on sites that have 

provision made through the planning system. 
 
1. Open market purchase (OMP) by either the council or RP partners  
 
The purchase of properties on the open market is subject to their location, property 
type, condition and price. For example, mostly ex-local authority properties are 
purchased in areas with existing council housing, and two and three bed houses are 
given priority due to the identified housing needs.  
 
There is also a price limit for the programme, which is reviewed regularly to ensure it 
is relevant in market conditions and provides value for money. 
 
Examples of Open Market Purchases 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



4 

 

Two RP partners (Welwyn Garden City Housing Association and B3 Living) have 
also agreed a purchase programme, with the council providing 30% of the funding.  
 
OMP is a method of delivery that is relatively high cost compared to other methods, 
but with an equivalently low risk. Cost analysis demonstrates that even if the OMP 
properties are later sold under the Right to Buy, it still provides value for money. 
 
OMP can also help deliver other strategic priorities, including purchasing long term 
empty properties and targeting former Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) and 
reletting these as family homes.  
 
 
2 Disposal of suitable brownfield council sites to RPs  
 
This includes the disposal of former garage sites and other suitable council owned 
brownfield land to RPs. The council can fund these providers directly at up to 30% of 
the legitimate development costs from useable receipts.  
 
There are a number of benefits to taking this approach, including the redevelopment 
of underutilised brownfield sites, and strengthening relationships and encouraging 
additional investment by RPs. The RPs will commit the remaining 70% of the costs 
of these developments, either through reserves or additional borrowing. 
 
The first phase garage sites (six sites) were disposed to Welwyn Garden City 
Housing Association and the 17 properties are now completed. A second phase has 
recently been tendered (which will provide a further 21 properties) and the council is 
identifying a third phase of potential sites.  In order to de-risk this method of delivery, 
the council has secured full planning permission on all the sites within Phase Two 
and plans to do the same for the sites identified within Phase Three. 
 
Examples of garage site development 
  
 
Before After 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 44



5 

 

3 Direct funding/construction for council ownership 
 
This involves either redevelopment projects or direct construction on council owned 
sites. Where the homes remain in the council’s ownership the receipts and HRA 
funds can pay for 100% of the homes delivered.  
 
Projects include the development of two garage sites in Hatfield on Furzen Crescent 
and Garden Avenue and the redevelopment of a low demand block in Northdown 
Road. Further schemes have also been identified on other garage sites. 
 
Strategic land purchase to assist in land assembly of sites for affordable housing for 
development can support additional units on a scheme or improve the accessibility 
and/or overall scheme design.  For example the purchase of garages from a private 
owner at Furzen Crescent allowed better access to the site for construction and an 
improved overall scheme design.  We will continue to look at opportunities to 
purchase land strategically in order to add value to projects and help with land 
assembly. 
 
Furzen Crescent, Hatfield  

 
Before After  
  

 
 
 
Garden Avenue, Hatfield 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Page 45



6 

 

 
  
 
 
Photo: Northdown Road redevelopment 
opportunity 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
4 Windfall opportunities, including achieving additional value on sites that have 

provision made through the planning system. 
 
S106 Sites (Planning requirement) 
 
RtB receipts can be used to increase the proportion of affordable properties on a 
Section 106 site. This is usually where the viability of the site means that without the 
additional funding, less than the usual policy requirement will be provided.  An 
example of this is Sir Frederic Osborn School where the affordable provision for 
Hightown Praetorian Housing Association on the site increased from 20 – 30% as a 
result of using RtB money.  
 
Whilst the team aims to negotiate the full policy requirement on all S106 sites, where 
viability issues are substantiated, the Affordable Housing Programme will be a 
powerful tool to ensure we maximize affordable housing on these sites.  Key 
strategic sites have known viability issues, and the programme presents the 
opportunity to make up the financial shortfall to deliver policy compliant sites.  
 
Other Opportunities 
 
Grant funding has been allocated to Paradigm Housing Association for four houses 
on Cherry Way, Hatfield and to Welwyn Garden City Housing Association for a 
development of five flats on Elizabeth Close in Panshanger (grant funding provided 
for 3 flats).  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
There are other opportunities being explored on local sites. 

Page 46



7 

 

 
Other Methods of Delivery 
 
There are a range of other schemes that are being investigated outside of the above 
strands.  

 Cash Incentive Scheme.  We are exploring the option of providing a ‘cash 
incentive’ to current secure tenants, in order for them to purchase a suitable 
property and free up their current council home.  It is likely that the ‘cash 
incentive’ would be provided as grant, making the new home ‘affordable’ for 
the tenant.   

 An Open Market Purchase programme for older people who currently under 
occupy family sized homes and are willing to sell to the council at a 
discounted price in exchange for rehousing within suitable smaller council 
owned or Registered Provider stock. 

 Consideration of sites with planning approval that is due to expire.   The team 
will proactively contact land owners to talk about what the barriers may be and 
identify any opportunities for use of RtB funds to bring forward development. 

 
Funding 
 
The council uses the available Right to Buy receipts, which can be used to pay for up 
to 30% of the new affordable housing.  The remaining 70% investment is found from 
alternative funding sources, including Housing Revenue Account (HRA) surpluses 
and reserves and investment from Registered Providers.  
 
Capital Investment 
 
Since the council signed up to the Right to Buy agreement, 324 properties have 
been sold (as of end of March 2016). Based on current projections we anticipate that 
569 properties will be sold by March 2021, giving a total of £36m useable receipts. 
As the receipts can only pay for a maximum of 30% of the cost of an affordable 
home, this generates an additional investment requirement of £84m, meaning a total 
investment requirement of £120m.   
 
Some of these receipts have already been spent and there is a projected total 
expenditure of £41m over the next five years.  Consequently, in order to spend all 
the receipts likely to be available, a mixture of supply will be needed and gaps in 
delivery can be bridged by the Open Market Purchase programme. 
 
There are a number of sources of finance to fund the remaining 70% of the schemes 
and they are outlined below: 
 
Investment from Registered Providers 
 
Working with RPs and other investors (such as charitable organisations) allows the 
council to deliver new homes in the district and retain nomination rights to these 
properties without having to raise the additional 70% investment in-house. 
 
Use of HRA Balances and Reserves 

Page 47



8 

 

It is possible to supplement the RtB receipts by using HRA balances.  However, with 
recent rent reductions this is not sustainable over a long period and will only make 
up a comparatively small proportion of the required 70% investment 
Extending the self financing debt (HRA)  
 
Use of the Attributable Debt Pot 
 
When a property is sold under the RtB the sum that the government considers to be 
the outstanding loan on the property is returned to the council (approximately 
£33,000 per property sold) is returned to the council. Approximately £10m of the 
attributable debt has been earmarked to support the programme up to 2020.  
 
Extending the self financing debt (HRA) 
 
In 2011 the HRA subsidy system was abolished and self financing commenced.  
Under the self financing reforms the council took on borrowing of £306m to cover the 
debt allocated by government.  The debt was taken out initially over a relatively short 
timeframe (16 years) and therefore a high proportion of the debt is being repaid 
annually.  Each year, this creates ‘headroom’ that is the gap between the value of 
the outstanding loan and the original amount of borrowing.  The government is 
encouraging local authorities to make use of this additional borrowing power.  By the 
end of 2015/16 the headroom stood at £39.4m and by 2020/21 this will stand at 
£124.1m. 
 
The proposed delivery plan is an increase on the current plan of a further 300 
affordable units.  Of these 50% (150) are assumed to be delivered by Registered 
Providers with the other 50% for council ownership.   The estimated cost to deliver 
these 150 units is £34.5million.  RTB receipts of £4.3million and voluntary sales of 
high value properties generating £3million is assumed to be available to help fund 
this cost, but the bulk of the funding of around £27.2million is expected to come from 
additional borrowing.  

The graph below demonstrates the financial modelling completed to show the impact 
of the additional investment of 150 units in the affordable programme, using a 
number of assumptions and based on data available in the final quarter of 2015/16.  
The year-end outturn position will provide an update to the assumptions.  The 
estimates are based on: 

 retaining a £5m contingency balance in the HRA,  

 savings of £2m to meet rent decreases are achieved in the HRA 

 slow rent growth after 4 year rent reductions  

 RTB sales reducing over medium term  

 a generally prudent approach to assumptions 

 based on current government policy - Impact of any future policy 
changes unknown  

 Does not include any assumed receipts from forced sale of high value 
properties  

Page 48



9 

 

 

 
 
Investment in a further 150 properties is reflected in an increase in the amount of 
borrowing outstanding over the period and is shown by the dotted red line.  Taking 
into account the current loan repayment schedule, the revised programme will see 
total outstanding borrowing peak at around £246million in 2020/21.  At this level 
there is still borrowing headroom of around £59million.  The financial model predicts 
interest payments would peak in 2027/28 at around £9million per annum. 

The financial modelling demonstrates that the strategy and delivery plan is affordable 
for the Housing Revenue Account, all other things being equal.  The model will need 
to continue to be monitored and reviewed over the course of the delivery plan and 
action taken accordingly as part of the annual budget setting process.  

 
 
 
 

Page 49



Appendix C 

Desired Benefit Stakeholders 
Impacted Enablers Required Outcomes Displayed Measurable Output Progress 

Benefits associated within the borough 
generally 

          

Increase in affordable 
housing let at social rent 
and affordable rent 

WHBC waiting list 
applicants 

RP Framework, Planners, 
WHCHT, HCC 

Decrease in waiting list, 
increase in new affordable 
homes 

current committed 
numerical target 129 
homes 

22 OMP, 3 flats funded Elizabeth 
Close 

Addressing housing 
need and therefore 
reducing the number of 
residents living in 
unsuitable housing e.g. 
overcrowding and 
homelessness 

WHBC residents, 
homeless 

WHCHT, NHS, HCC social 
services 

Evidence from Housing Needs 
and bidders 

n/a   

Reduction in the need 
for temporary 
accommodation and 
thus reduction in the 
risk of requiring B&B 
accommodation 

WHBC paying for 
B&B, WHBC waiting 
list applicants 

WHCHT Housing needs No B&Bs required n/a No tenants in B&B 

Replacement homes via 
the governments One 
for One RtB initiative 

DCLG, local MP WHCHT, WHBC Number delivered no of homes sold under 
initiative - 205 

  

Partnership working 
with local service 
providers, businesses 
and organisations 

WHBC residents Police, fire service, 
estate agents, landlords, 
RPs, HCC, developers, 
contractors, HCA 

  n/a   

Maintaining and 
growing the stock levels 
of the council's housing 
stock, to ensure it is at 
its most efficient scale 

WHCHT and 
Resources Dept 

Planners, WHCHT, 
developers 

Number delivered for WHBC 
ownership 

current committed 
numerical target for 
council homes - 74 

29 homes submitted for planning 
application 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix A: Benefits Realisation Plan  

P
age 50



11 

 

Benefits associated 
with new build 

          

Effective use of 
brownfield and hard-to-
let disused garage sites 

Neighbours, police 
service 

WHBC Corporate 
Property, planners, 
police arch liaison 
officer, architect, RPs 

Relocation of garage tenants 
and alternative use of vacant 
sites, best use of council assets 
on infill development rather 
than on green belt 

18 sites currently 
committed in programme 

4 garage sites disposed to WGCHA, 
Elizabeth Close complete, Cherry 
Way on site, 

Reduction in ASB in 
targeting sites and 
safety and security for 
local residents improved 

Local residents, 
WHCHT tenants, 
police service 

Architect, police arch 
liaison officer, 
contractor, RPs 

Evidence from street wardens 
and police - Design led 
improvements 

stats from Police, less 
neighbour complaints 

  

High quality residential 
homes built for local 
people 

WHCHT, WHBC 
residents 

Employers Agent, 
Architect, contractor, 
RPs 

Housing Quality Indicators No of homes in pipeline - 
129 

3 flats complete 

Public realm extended 
and enhanced through 
new development                         

Local residents Planners, RPs   n/a   

All newly constructed 
homes designed to 
Lifetime Home Standard 
- inclusive access 

WHCHT tenants Architect, contractor, 
employers agent, RPs 

Lifetime Home results Code for 
Sustainable Homes results 

Code Level 3/4 and 100% 
Lifetime Homes 

All sites to achieve at least Code 3, 2 
Council schemes to achieve 100% 
Lifetime Homes, wheelchair units to 
be submitted 

Income to the Council 
through the use of 
Building Control 

Planning, 
architects, 
contractors 

WHBC, architects, 
planners 

  n/a   

Ability to build unit 
types not normally built 
by a developer - 
wheelchair units, 
bungalows 

WHCHT, WHBC 
residents 

Planners, WHCHT, RPs Possible release of family 
accommodation if target under 
occupation 

no of bungalows - 6 - no of 
wheelchair standard units 
- 1 

 1 bungalow purchased, Planning 
applications to be submitted for 
bungalows and wheelchair units 

Consultation with local 
residents 

WHBC Planners, architects, 
contractors, RPs 

Improvements for local 
residents 

n/a All RPs and council attended 
resident consultation events 

Reduction in fuel 
poverty for tenants in 
new build homes 

WHBC tenants WHCHT, HCC, RPs Code level, HCA standards, 
HQIs, bills reduced 

n/a   

P
age 51



12 

 

Benefits associated 
with grant funding to 
RPs 

          

Best value obtained for 
land disposals 

WHBC Resources 
dept 

Corporate Property, 
Planners, RPs 

Capital receipts achieved n/a   

Additional investment to 
the Borough by tapping 
into RPs 
resources/finance 

WHBC, RPs RPs, financial institutions £s invested by RPs n/a 4 sites disposed to WGCHA to invest 
70% funding 

Benefits associated 
with Open Market 
Purchase 

          

Ability to purchase 
homes to meet specific 
needs - such as families 
with a member with a  
disability 

WHCHT, WHBC 
residents 

HCC OTs, WHCHT, estate 
agents 

Numbers purchased n/a   

Purchase of homes in 
poor repair and bringing 
them up to a Decent 
Homes Standard 

WHCHT, WHBC 
residents 

WHCHT, Mears, 
Corporate property 

Numbers purchased OMP target committed 22 purchased 

Support the local 
housing market by 
purchasing bottom of 
the chain properties 

WHBC residents 
and local business 

WHCHT, estate agents, 
Corporate Property 

Value for money in homes 
purchased 

n/a 22 purchased 

Purchase of long term 
empty properties 

WHBC WHCHT, Corporate 
property, Mears 

Number of homes purchased n/a   

Vacant HMO properties 
being brought back into 
family accommodation 

WHCHT residents, 
local residents and 
WHBC residents 

Private sector housing 
team, Mears, WHCHT 

Number purchased current numerical target - 
10 

9 HMOs purchased 

P
age 52



Appendix C 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 53



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Part I 
Main author: Cettina Lambert-Laurent 
Executive Member: Cllr Mandy Perkins 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE – 21 JULY 2016 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR (GOVERNANCE) 
 

SECTION 106 REPORT 

1 INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 Section 106 (s106) of the Town and Planning Country Act 1990 (as amended) 
allows landowners to enter into planning obligations, the purpose of which is to 
make development acceptable that would otherwise be unacceptable in planning 
terms.  Planning obligations are legally binding covenants and compromise both 
planning agreements and unilateral undertakings.  A s106 agreement is an 
agreement between a local planning authority and a landowner, whereas a 
unilateral undertaking is an obligation offered by an applicant in support of a 
planning application or planning appeal.  

 
1.2 Planning obligations are an effective tool to secure the necessary infrastructure 

and services required as a result of development and to also ensure that the 
negative impacts of a development can be adequately mitigated, for example 
increasing/improving public transport provision, increasing school capacity, 
enhancing open spaces, requiring that a given portion of housing is affordable, 
etc.  It is important to note that they cannot be used to mitigate the impact of any 
shortfall in existing infrastructure however. 
 

1.3 Central government introduced the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
Regulations 2010 (as amended) which came into force in April 2010 as a more 
transparent way of securing contributions from developers via a tariff for each 
square metre of new residential, industrial, commercial, etc. development. This 
Council is working towards the introduction of a CIL charging schedule. The first 
stage of this process will be to publish a Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule for 
consultation; this is currently intended to take place towards the end of 2016 
following consultation on the Local Plan.  After this a Draft Charging Schedule 
will be prepared and submitted for examination later in 2017 with a view to 
adopting CIL at the end of 2017 or early 2018.  

 
2 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That Members note the explanation of the Section 106 and Community 

Infrastructure Levy process set out in this report and the monies currently held by 
the Borough Council. 

 

Page 55

Agenda Item 9



2.2 That Members offer comments on how they would like the Council to secure (as 
elaborated on in paragraph 3.3) and spend Section 106 and Community 
Infrastructure Levy contributions in the future. 

 

3. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
3.1 The purpose of this report is to provide members with a broad understanding of 

both how the planning obligations system works, and to provide information on  
how the Borough Council has collected and spent monies in the past, as well as 
monies which are still to be spent.  The Borough Council collects and spends 
contributions towards community facilities, public art, green spaces, indoor and 
outdoor sports facilities, play areas and equipment, and on site waste and 
recycling storage.  These funds are detailed in Appendix 1 by Ward (which 
shows a breakdown of potential s106 monies, the sums collected so far, spent so 
far and remaining funds yet to be spent).  Hertfordshire County Council as the 
local highway and education authority spends contributions towards education, 
highways, transport, parking and rights of way.  Monies currently held and 
recently spent funds by County are detailed in Appendices 2 and 3. 
 

3.2 To report s106 matters to this committee on a yearly basis. 
 

3.3 To advise Ward Members that s106 contributions can be sought from future 
developments above 10 residential units and for Members to consider this in 
identifying related potential infrastructure requirements in their wards.   
Contributions can also be sought from developments including employment or 
retail uses. 
 

4 BACKGROUND  
 

Guidance on Planning Obligations  
 
4.1 Both the Borough and County Councils have produced guidance fully detailing 

the planning obligations which can be sought.  This is also useful in assisting 
applicants/developers to calculate their potential s106 costs.  These documents 
titled Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) in 2012 
and HCC Planning Obligations Guidance - Toolkit for Hertfordshire can be 
viewed at: http://www.welhat.gov.uk/planningguidance 
 

 Necessary Tests to make Planning Acceptable 
 

4.2  As mentioned above the purpose of Planning Obligations is to make 
development acceptable that would otherwise be unacceptable in planning 
terms.  The National Panning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out in paragraph 
204 that planning obligations only be sought where they meet the following tests: 

 
- Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 
- Directly related to the development; and 
- Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 

Page 56

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/planningguidance


4.3 Furthermore, with the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) coming into force, 
planning obligations can also only be sought where they meet the tests set out in 
Regulation 122 of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as 
amended).  This places new statutory restrictions upon the use of planning 
obligations to clarify their purpose. For local planning authorities without an 
adopted CIL Charging Schedule, CIL Regulation 123 (3) limits the pooling of a 
maximum of five obligations towards a specific infrastructure project or type 
including education and transport. This affects all s106s entered into since 6 April 
2010. 

 The Pooling Restriction 

4.4 Prior to April 2015, local planning authorities were able to pool together a number 
of planning obligations in order to pay for infrastructure projects. This meant, for 
example, that generic planning obligations could be sought on a tariff based 
approach towards generic infrastructure types such as “education” or “transport”. 
The opportunity to pool planning obligations contributions was helpful for both the 
borough and county council as it enabled larger pots of money to be assembled 
and then spent on more costly projects. However, the introduction of the pooling 
restriction, which as mentioned is backdated to March 2010, means that no more 
than five planning obligations may be entered into towards any specific project or 
type of infrastructure. The overriding purpose of the pooling restriction has been 
to encourage councils to adopt a CIL charging schedule and, for the majority of 
applications, to move away from the use of s106 agreements. The aim of this 
was to be able to provide developers with more certainty over the infrastructure 
costs that would be associated with their development. 

4.5 What the pooling restriction has meant is that this Council can no longer rely on 
the tariff based approach of the past. This means that, when an impact on 
infrastructure is likely as a result of a planning application, the nature of that 
potential impact has to be identified and quantified. A specific project then has to 
be identified to demonstrate where any s106 money from that development 
would be spent. The Council has to demonstrate that the project is deliverable, 
costed, whether any other sources of funding are contributing to it as well and, in 
particular, be sure that five obligations have not already been spent on that 
project. In order to do this, the planning team is reliant on timely advice from the 
providers of these services, be that Hertfordshire County Council, NHS England, 
internal departments or one of our Town or Parish Councils. 

4.6 In practice, this has meant that planning obligations will not always be sought, 
particularly if the relevant service provider is not able to demonstrate that they 
have an identified scheme on which the money could be spent, or that the 
proposed development is not of significant enough size, and would not generate 
a large enough sum of money, for it to be worthwhile including it as one of the 
five obligations which can contribute towards the identified project in that area. 
This has meant that service providers of major infrastructure such as education, 
transport and healthcare, have had to try and predict and plan for new 
development over a longer timeframe in order that they seek planning obligations 
from the right developments. This in turn serves to re-enforce the importance of 

Page 57



the new Local Plan in supporting this infrastructure planning. 
 

5 Going Forward 
 
 Viability 

 
5.1 During the course of determining planning applications which would be likely to 

generate some impact on infrastructure, it is increasingly important to consider 
the overall viability of a development. This is particularly important when it comes 
to the consideration of potential planning obligations that a developer may be 
asked to pay for their development as these can have a significant impact on 
development viability.  
 

5.2 The National Planning Policy Framework advises at paragraph 205 that “where 
obligations are being sought or revised, local planning authorities should take 
account of changes in market conditions over time and, wherever appropriate, be 
sufficiently flexible to prevent planned development being stalled”. It is clear from 
this that where a developer identifies to the Council that there are viability 
difficulties for the development being considered, the Council has to take this into 
account and consider whether it would be appropriate to reduce the amount of 
planning obligations and/or affordable housing being sought. 
 

5.3 In scenarios where a developer does identify a viability challenge for a proposal, 
the Council can request the submission of a viability assessment in order to test 
the assertion being made. This assessment will then be considered by the 
Council, or consultants acting on the Council’s behalf, with the costs of this work 
being covered by the developer. This process is set out in detail in the Council’s 
Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (SPD). 

 
5.4 The outcomes of a viability appraisal can be varied and may include a negotiated 

reduction in planning obligations contributions or affordable housing, or the 
Council and developer may not agree, in which case applications can still be 
refused and viability arguments tested further at an appeal. 
 

 Reasons why planning obligations may not be sought 
 
5.5 There are circumstances where planning obligations may not be sought, even 

though it would initially appear that some impact on existing infrastructure 
provision would be likely to occur. There can be a number of different reasons for 
this such as a lack of resources, a lack of evidence to demonstrate need or 
indeed the pooling restriction which has been discussed above. It is important to 
understand that if the Council, as Local Planning Authority, is not able to 
demonstrate a robust case for seeking planning obligations payments, then it 
should not do so. In this regard, the Council is reliant on the quality of information 
and justification that emerges from the various service providers.   

 
 
 

 

Page 58



 

A case example where NHS money has not been sought: 
 
It is understood that Members have expressed concerns for some time regarding 
the perceived lack of response to planning applications from healthcare service 
providers, NHS England and the East and North Herts Clinical Commissioning 
Group (CCG). Firstly it is useful to understand the differences between these two 
organisations. NHS England is the part of the NHS which is responsible for 
commissioning General Practice (GP) services and facilities. The CCG is 
responsible for commissioning primary care such as specialist hospital based 
services. Since the reorganisation of the NHS it had been the case that these two 
bodies were trying to respond to planning application consultations separately, 
with a varied quality of outcome. More recently, they have sought to give a more 
rounded response to the local planning authority in order to better target their 
responses and have a better chance of collecting planning obligations monies. 

 
The challenge with healthcare however is the implication of the pooling 
restriction. It is undeniably the case that, with very few exceptions, every new 
dwelling that is created in the Borough is likely to have some impact on the 
availability of healthcare services by increasing demand. However, having regard 
to the pooling restriction, the healthcare organisations have to be careful in 
making sure that they only target the proposals that are likely to deliver the most 
significant funding streams. For example, if NHS England is looking to deliver a 
new doctor’s surgery in a settlement in the Borough, they will need to consider 
carefully which development proposals are likely to come forward within the 
timeframe for the delivery of that facility. They will need to target the largest 
schemes which can deliver the most funding, and the other developments in the 
area will be likely to pass by without paying a contribution towards healthcare. 
Whilst this is not entirely satisfying, this is the nature of the system that has been 
created, and indeed presents a persuasive justification for implementing a 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) charge within the Borough. A meeting 
between representatives of NHS England and CCG has taken place with the 
Council including the Executive Member for Planning, Housing and Community. 
Notes of that meeting can be seen at Appendix 2. 
 

 The Role of Town and Parish Councils 
 
5.6 Town and Parish Councils have an important role to play in this process, in 

particular by being able to identify local deliverable schemes. It is important that 
the Borough Council works with the Town and Parish Councils to help them to 
provide robust information about projects in their localities. Information will be 
required on the nature of the project, what the estimated overall cost will be, 
whether any other funding streams will also be used and the timeframe for the 
delivery of that project. It is anticipated that this will predominantly relate to 
projects dealing with play space, green space and sports and recreation facilities. 
The Development Management Team will seek to engage with Town and Parish 
Councils on planning applications with potential s106 agreements. 
 

5.7 Town and Parish Councils should also recognise that providing this information is 
important even in circumstances where they do not support a particular 

Page 59



application which is being considered by the local planning authority.  Whilst an 
application may not be supported at the local level, it may still be granted by the 
Borough Council or allowed on appeal. In these circumstances, it is important 
that the local community is still able to realise some benefit from a development, 
even if it was not initially supported.  It is also worth noting that funding for 
projects would only come forward if and when development is implemented, it 
could also be years before this occurs for example if they are developments 
which have been identified in the Local Plan. 
 

5.8 Officers intend to organise training with Town and Parish Councils to improve 
awareness of the development management and section 106 process. 

 

6 INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
 

6.1 Here is a breakdown of the Borough Council’s s106 monies received and spent 
since 2006 

 
Year Receipts Expenditure Remaining sum 

for spending 

Pre 2006 £1,463,868 unknown   

2006/07 £101,804 £231,540   

2007/08 £212,339 £128,875   

2008/09 £0 £128,128   

2009/10 £17,654 £290,907   

2010/11 £0 £20,914   

2011/12 £3,252 £433,584   

2012/13 £16,149 £40,315   

2013/14 £474,939 £49,530   

2014/15 £136,206 £130,410   

2015/16 £174,491 £26,331   

2016/17 to date £3,114 £20,242   

Total £2,603,817 £1,482,426 £1,121,390 
Source: Finance records 

2016/17 to date - Demand Notices have been issued to the value of £15,686. 

6.2 Projects S106 funds spent on 
 
Here are a few examples of the projects larger s106 sums have been spent on 
over the years: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 60



 

Site/Project Amount spent 

Provision of a Community Centre within the Primary 
School site of the Hatfield Aerodrome development 
(1999/1064) 

£259,993 

Provision of a Sports Ground at the North of Manor 
Road and west of Hatfield Garden Village, Hatfield 
development (2001/0577) 

£ 73,268 

Controlled Parking Zone Design, Consultation & 
Implementation at the Park & Ride development at Land 
at Angerland Common, South Way, Hatfield (2003/0150) 

£492,327 

         Source: Exacom Dashboard and Projects 

 
7 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 There are no financial, security/terrorism, or climate change implications 
associated with this report other than those that fall under the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 and the CIL Regulations 2010.  There are policy implications 
in that the Council’s planning and housing policies may need to be amended to 
reflect any future Starter Homes regulations, these will become apparent as we 
progress through this process.  

 
7.2 Legal and procurement implications – The Council is in process of 

commissioning legal practitioners to help prepare Section 106 agreements.  The 
costs of such agreements are paid by the developer/applicant.  A report shall be 
presented to the Cabinet on 2nd August which will recommend the award of a 
framework contract to three companies. 

 
7.3 Risk management implications – The Council should be aware of how much 

unspent Section 106 funds it holds, as Hertfordshire County Council was recently 
criticised in the national press for holding £56 million.  This Council should work 
closely with the County Council to identify and progress highway, education, etc. 
projects for which they are responsible.  Funds also need to be spent within 
certain deadlines stipulated by each agreement (most commonly 10 years).  Any 
unspent funds would need to be returned to the Developers.  No such obligations 
have been identified to date.  The Council also needs to closely monitor 
proposed financial obligations in adherence with the Pooling Restriction (as 
explained from paragraph 4.4). 
 

8 EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY 
 

8.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out in connection with 
the recommendations in this report. 
 
 

Name of authors: Cettina Lambert-Laurent – Planning Obligations & CIL Officer 

Page 61



 Chris Carter – Principal Major Development Officer 
  
 
Appendices:  
Appendix 1 – S106 Funds by Ward  
Appendix 2 – Herts County Council Traffic Light Report (Property) as at 29 Dec 15 
Appendix 3 – Herts County Council Traffic Light Report (Environment) as at 29 Dec 15 
Appendix 4 - Notes of Healthcare Meeting 

Page 62



S106 Report Appendix 1 - Breakdown of Potential, Collected, Spent and Remaining Funds by Ward

B.Park/L.Heath Potential Collected Spent Available Application numbers and site addresses

S106 Green Space £0 £2,469 £0 £2,469 2013/2231 1-12 Green Close, Brookmans Pk, Hatfield

S106 Misc. Financial Appraisal Costs £0 £646 £646 £0 2008/1948 Lower Woodside Farm, Wildhill Rd, Brookmans Pk

S106 Play Equipment WHBC £0 £8,946 £0 £8,946 2013/2231 1-12 Green Close, Brookmans Pk, Hatfield

S106 Waste and Recycling £0 £2,972 £1,892 £1,080

2013/2231 1-12 Green Close, & 2013/0830 Land at Green Close & Station Rd, 

Brookmans Pk

TOTALS £0 £15,034 £2,538 £12,495

Haldens £0 £0 £0 £0

Handside Potential Collected Spent Available

S106 Play Equipment WHBC £0 £50,000 £50,000 £0 2004/0083 67 Lemsford Lane, & 2003/0349 Land at Lemsford Lane, WGC

Hatfield Central Potential Collected Spent Available

S106 Community Facilities £3,000 £0 £0 £0 2010/0136 Hatfield Town Centre East, Queensway

Hatfield East Potential Collected Spent Available

S106 Green Space £178,488 £0 £0 £0

2013/0323 Former Mount Pleasant Depot,  2014/1541 Colonial Hse, 87 Grt North Rd & 

2011/0359 7hb Howlands, WGC

Hatfield North Potential Collected Spent Available

S106 Community Art £0 £10,000 £10,000 £0 2001/0577 Land to the north of Manor Rd & west of Hatfield Garden Village

S106 Community Facilities £0 £229,490 £0 £229,490 2001/0577 as above, 1999/1115 & 1999/0971 Former Smurfitt Factory & sportsground

S106 Green Space £0 £64,663 £59,238 £5,425 2003/0656, 1999/1115 & 1999/0971 all Former Smurfitt factory & sportsground

S106 Outdoor Sports Facililties £0 £73,268 £73,268 £0 2001/0577 as above

S106 Play Area Hatfield TC £0 £68,994 £0 £68,994 2001/0577 as above

S106 Waste and Recycling £0 £21,326 £21,326 £0 2001/0577 as above, 1999/1115 & 1999/0971 Former Smurfitt Factory & sportsground

TOTALS £0 £457,742 £163,832 £303,909

Hatfield South Potential Collected Spent Available

S106 Play Equipment Hatfield TC £0 £16,149 £16,149 £0 2007/0925 Hazel Grove Primary Sch, Hatfield

S106 Waste and Recycling £2,544 £1,493 £0 £1,493 2013/1606 City Church, The Wades

TOTALS £2,544 £17,642 £16,149 £1,493

Hatfield Villages £0 £0 £0 £0

Hatfield West Potential Collected Spent Available

S106 Allotments £0 £490 £0 £490 2008/2052 Three Valleys Water PLC, Bishops Rise

S106 Business £0 £20,000 £10,000 £10,000 1999/1064 Hatfield Aerodrome

P
age 63



S106 Community Facilities £0 £259,993 £259,993 £0 1999/1064 Hatfield Aerodrome

S106 Green Space £0 £30,000 £0 £30,000 1999/1064 Hatfield Aerodrome

S106 Misc - 1st & 2nd Deposit sums£575,000 £125,880 £125,880 £0 1999/1064 Hatfield Aerodrome

S106 Play Equipment Hatfield TC £0 £79,262 £4,000 £75,262 2008/2052 as above

S106 Waste and Recycling £0 £4,401 £0 £4,401 2012/2004 The Cat & Fiddle, 199 St Albans Rd West & 2014/1052 45 Roe Green Lane

TOTALS £575,000 £520,026 £399,873 £120,153

Hollybush Potential Collected Spent Available

S106 Green Space £0 £209,139 £177,071 £32,068 1999/0005 Sir John Newsom Sch, Oaken Grove

S106 Waste & Recycling £2,340 £0 £0 £0 2013/0491 The Hyde, Hollybush Lane & 2015/1079 Former Dairy Crest Depot

TOTALS £2,340 £209,139 £177,071 £32,068

Howlands Potential Collected Spent Available

S106 Green Space £0 £67,432 £0 £67,432 1996/0924 Holwell Hyde & 2013/0341 Welwyn Car Repairs, Moorlands, WGC

S106 Waste and Recycling £0 £842 £0 £842 2013/0341 Welwyn Car Repairs, Moorlands, WGC

TOTALS £0 £68,274 £0 £68,274

Northaw & Cuffley Potential Collected Spent Available

S106 Green Space £0 £2,926 £0 £2,926 2014/0243 Turbocentre Car Sales, 80 Station Rd, Cuffley

S106 Play Equipment WHBC £0 £7,675 £0 £7,675 2014/0243 as above

TOTALS £0 £10,601 £0 £10,601

Panshanger Potential Collected Spent Available

S106 Outdoor Sports Facilities £0 £409,036 £0 £409,036 2006/0923 Sir Frederic Osbourne Sch, WGC

S106 Trees £0 £3,100 £3,100 £0 2012/0282 Sir frederic Osbourne Sch, WGC

TOTALS £0 £412,136 £3,100 £409,036

Peartree Potential Collected Spent Available

S106 Indoor Sports Facilities £0 £6,000 £0 £6,000 2015/2128 Rank Xerox Technical Centre, WGC

S106 Outdoor Sports Facilities £0 £6,000 £0 £6,000 2015/2128 Rank Xerox Technical Centre, WGC

S106 Play Equipment WHBC £0 £2,744 £0 £2,744 1993/0834 Land off Broadwater Rd, WGC

S106 Waste and Recycling £4,413 £2,544 £0 £2,544 2015/2128 Rank Xerox Technical Centre, WGC

TOTALS £4,413 £17,288 £0 £17,288

Sherrards £0 £0 £0 £0

Welham Green Potential Collected Spent Available

S106 Parking £0 £482,294 £482,294 £0 2003/0150 Land at Angerland Common, Southway, Hatfield

Welwyn East £0 £0 £0 £0

Welwyn North £0 £0 £0 £0

Welwyn South £0 £0 £0 £0

P
age 64



Welwyn West Potential Collected Spent Available

S106 Allotments £0 £1,082 £0 £1,082 2013/0821 Former Clock Hotel, Welwyn

S106 Green Space £0 £5,219 £0 £5,219 2013/0821 as above

S106 Parking Surveys & Mitigation £0 £50,000 £9,600 £40,400 2013/0821 as above

S106 Play Equipment WHBC £0 £13,690 £0 £13,690 2013/0821 as above

S106 Waste and Recycling £14,025 £1,624 £0 £1,624 2013/0821 as above & 2012/1778 The Frythe, 5 Digswell Hill, Welweyn

TOTALS £14,025 £71,615 £9,600 £62,015

Source: Exacom Dashboard

P
age 65



P
age 66



P
age 67



P
age 68



Appendix 2 - Herts County Council Traffic Light Report (Property) as at 29 Dec 2015

Welwyn 

Hatfield BC 

Ref

Electoral 

Division

Town Address Use Clause Remaining Approvals Possible 

Schemes

N6/2005/1248/

FP

Haldens ED Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Moors Walk 

Neighbourhood Centre

Library Towards the costs of providing 

additional library facilities 

serving the locality of the 

Development 

£5,100.00

N6/2005/1248/

FP

Haldens ED Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Moors Walk 

Neighbourhood Centre

Youth Towards the costs of providing 

additional youth facilities serving 

the locality of the Development

£5,175.13

N6/2006/0923/

OP

Haldens ED Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Sir Frederic Osborn 

School

Childcare Towards the provision of 

childcare facilities serving the 

locality of the Development

£11,204.89

N6/2006/0923/

OP

Haldens ED Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Sir Frederic Osborn 

School

Library Towards the provision of library 

facilities serving the locality of 

the Development

£11,174.03

N6/2006/0923/

OP

Haldens ED Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Sir Frederic Osborn 

School

Youth Towards the provision of youth 

facilities serving the locality of 

the Development

£11,204.89

N6/2009/2259/

MA 

Handside 

and Peartree 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Former Chieftain PH 

Cole Green Lane

Library Towards facilities serving the 

locality of the Development

£2,376.00

N6/2011/1177/

FP 

Handside 

and Peartree 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Former Parkway School Childcare To provide childcare facilities 

serving the locality of the 

Development

£887.89 £500.00 

Approved 

(29/04/2014)  

Equipment for 

Tree Tops at 

Ludwick 

Nursery School

N6/2011/1177/

FP 

Handside 

and Peartree 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Former Parkway School Library Towards the cost of additional 

library facilities serving the 

locality of the Development

£1,991.31

N6/2011/1177/

FP 

Handside 

and Peartree 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Former Parkway School Secondary Towards the cost of secondary 

educational facilities serving the 

locality of the Development

£25,756.34

N6/2010/1776/

MA

Handside 

and Peartree 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

FORMER ROCHE 

BUILDINGS

Library Towards the provision of 

facilities ordinarily used by 

residents of the Development

£26,274.00

P
age 69



Welwyn 

Hatfield BC 

Ref

Electoral 

Division

Town Address Use Clause Remaining Approvals Possible 

Schemes

N6/2010/1776/

MA

Handside 

and Peartree 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

FORMER ROCHE 

BUILDINGS

Secondary Towards the provision of 

facilities ordinarily used by 

residents of the Development

£6,046.00

N6/2010/1776/

MA

Handside 

and Peartree 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

FORMER ROCHE 

BUILDINGS

Youth Towards the provision of 

facilities ordinarily used by 

residents of the Development

£3,889.00

N6/2010/2456/

MA 

Handside 

and Peartree 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Police Station Library Towards the cost of additional 

library facilities serving the 

locality of the Development

£5,774.42

N6/2006/291/F

P

Handside 

and Peartree 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Rosanne House Childcare To provide facilities serving the 

locality of the Development

£1,337.42

N6/2006/291/F

P

Handside 

and Peartree 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Rosanne House Library For the improvement of library 

facilities in Hertfordshire

£3,226.70

N6/2006/291/F

P

Handside 

and Peartree 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Rosanne House Nursery Towards the cost of facilities 

serving the locality of the 

Development

£4,487.31

S6/2011/2614/

FP

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield 35 Lemsford Road Nursery Towards the cost of nursery 

facilities serving the locality of 

the development

£0.00 £1375.54 

Approved 

(18/03/2015)  

New Classroom 

at Birchwood 

Primary for The 

Birches, 

Birchwood 

Nursery

S6/2014/1052/

MA 

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield 45 Roe Green Lane Library facilities serving the locality of 

the Development

£1,288.77

S6/2014/1052/

MA 

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield 45 Roe Green Lane Primary facilities serving the locality of 

the Development

£5,453.63

S6/2014/1052/

MA 

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield 45 Roe Green Lane Youth facilities serving the locality of 

the Development

£58.97

P
age 70



Welwyn 

Hatfield BC 

Ref

Electoral 

Division

Town Address Use Clause Remaining Approvals Possible 

Schemes

S6/2011/1560/

MA 

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Former Bill Salmon 

Centre, 88 Town Centre

Library facilities serving the locality of 

the Development

£2,114.47

S6/2011/1560/

MA 

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Former Bill Salmon 

Centre, 88 Town Centre

Nursery facilities serving the locality of 

the Development

£278.40 £2616.96 

Approved 

(18/03/2015)  

New Classroom 

at Birchwood 

Primary for The 

Birches, 

Birchwood 

Nursery

S6/2009/891/M

A

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Former Hatfield 

Aerodrome

Childcare towards the cost of childcare 

facilities

£0.00 £3092.00 

Approved 

(18/03/2015)  

New Classroom 

at Birchwood 

Primary for The 

Birches, 

Birchwood 

Nursery

S6/2009/891/M

A

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Former Hatfield 

Aerodrome

Library towards the cost of library 

facilities

£4,564.00

S6/2009/891/M

A

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Former Hatfield 

Aerodrome

Secondary towards the cost of secondary 

facilities

£48,499.00

S6/2003/1137/

FP

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Hatfield Aerodrome Library To meet the cost of providing 

library facilities, buildings, books, 

equipment, other community 

information materials or 

equipment within the District 

Council’s and/or St Albans 

administrative areas

£1,205.67 £9035.89 

Approved 

(31/03/2007)  

Refurb of 

Hatfield Library    

S6/1064/99/OP Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Hatfield Aerodrome, 

Comet Way

Library Contributes to community 

facilities in the locality

£8,808.27 £104886.19 

Approved 

(31/03/2007)  

Hatfield Library 

refurb

P
age 71



Welwyn 

Hatfield BC 

Ref

Electoral 

Division

Town Address Use Clause Remaining Approvals Possible 

Schemes

S6/1064/99/OP Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Hatfield Aerodrome, 

Comet Way

Secondary cost of providing improvements 

alterations addiitonal 

replacement and/or enhanced 

school buildings classrooms 

and/or facilities and/or 

equipment at any secondary 

schools within the District 

Council's or St Albans City and 

District Council's administrative

£3,089,198.22

S6/2005/0432/

FP

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Land at Dunhams 

Courtyard, Park Street

Childcare additional facilties serving the 

locality of the development 

-£29.12 £1188.77 

Approved 

(18/03/2015)  

New Classroom 

at Birchwood 

Primary for The 

Birches, 

Birchwood 

Nursery

£1795.86 

Approved 

(24/09/2012)  

Squirrels day 

nursery at 

Hatfield 

community free 

school

S6/2005/0432/

FP

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Land at Dunhams 

Courtyard, Park Street

Library additional facilties serving the 

locality of the development 

£2,947.36

S6/2005/0432/

FP

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Land at Dunhams 

Courtyard, Park Street

Secondary additional facilties serving the 

locality of the development 

£25,949.84

S6/2005/0432/

FP

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Land at Dunhams 

Courtyard, Park Street

Youth additional facilties serving the 

locality of the development 

£2,955.51 Improvement and 

extension of 

facilities at 

Breaks Manor

£2986.96

P
age 72



Welwyn 

Hatfield BC 

Ref

Electoral 

Division

Town Address Use Clause Remaining Approvals Possible 

Schemes

S6/1999/0971/

FP

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Land at former Smurfit 

Factory Site, Brayfields

Secondary cost of providing improvements 

alterations addiitonal 

replacement and/or enhanced 

school buildings classrooms 

and/or facilities and/or 

equipment at any secondary 

schools within the District 

Council's or St Albans City and 

District Council's administrative

£1,990,840.87

S6/2011/1994/

MA

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Land at Salisbury 

Square

Library facilities serving the locality of 

the Development

£2,085.00

S6/2010/0111/

OP

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Mount Pleasant Depot, 

Mount Pleasant Lane

Childcare Towards the costs of providing 

facilities/services serving the 

locality of the Development

£0.00 £13620.51 

Approved 

(18/03/2015)  

New Classroom 

at Birchwood 

Primary for The 

Birches, 

Birchwood 

Nursery

S6/2010/0111/

OP

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Mount Pleasant Depot, 

Mount Pleasant Lane

Library Towards the costs of providing 

facilities/services serving the 

locality of the Development

£19,869.05

S6/2010/0111/

OP

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Mount Pleasant Depot, 

Mount Pleasant Lane

Nursery Towards the costs of providing 

facilities/services serving the 

locality of the Development

£0.00 £35119.99 

Approved 

(18/03/2015)  

New Classroom 

at Birchwood 

Primary for The 

Birches, 

Birchwood 

Nursery

S6/2010/0111/

OP

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Mount Pleasant Depot, 

Mount Pleasant Lane

Primary Towards the costs of providing 

facilities/services serving the 

locality of the Development

£0.00 £242481.29 

Approved 

(13/02/2015)  

Oak View 

Primary

S6/2010/0111/

OP

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Mount Pleasant Depot, 

Mount Pleasant Lane

Youth Towards the costs of providing 

facilities/services serving the 

locality of the Development

£4,771.17

P
age 73



Welwyn 

Hatfield BC 

Ref

Electoral 

Division

Town Address Use Clause Remaining Approvals Possible 

Schemes

S6/2010/0811/

MA

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Old Police Station and 

Council Offices

Childcare To provide facilities serving the 

locality of the Second 

Development

£0.00 £2028.00 

Approved 

(18/03/2015)  

New Classroom 

at Birchwood 

Primary for The 

Birches, 

Birchwood 

Nursery

S6/2010/0811/

MA

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Old Police Station and 

Council Offices

Library To provide facilities serving the 

locality of the Second 

Development

£2,842.00

P
age 74



Welwyn 

Hatfield BC 

Ref

Electoral 

Division

Town Address Use Clause Remaining Approvals Possible 

Schemes

S6/2012/2004/

MA

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield The Cat and Fiddle, 

199 St Albans Road 

West 

Childcare To provide childcare facilities 

serving the locality of the 

development

£0.00 £1108.46 

Approved 

(18/03/2015)  

New Classroom 

at Birchwood 

Primary for The 

Birches, 

Birchwood 

Nursery

S6/2012/2004/

MA

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield The Cat and Fiddle, 

199 St Albans Road 

West 

Library Towards the cost of additional 

library facilities serving the 

locality of the development

£1,008.07

S6/2012/2004/

MA

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield The Cat and Fiddle, 

199 St Albans Road 

West 

Nursery Towards the cost of nursery 

education facilities serving the 

locality of the development

£0.00 £3240.67 

Approved 

(18/03/2015)  

New Classroom 

at Birchwood 

Primary for The 

Birches, 

Birchwood 

Nursery

S6/2012/2004/

MA

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield The Cat and Fiddle, 

199 St Albans Road 

West 

Primary Towards the cost of primary 

education facilities serving the 

locality of the development

£21,636.87

S6/2008/2052/

OP

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Three Valleys Water, 

Bishops Rise

Childcare facilities/services serving the 

locality of the Development

£0.00 £10538.00 

Approved 

(18/03/2015)  

New Classroom 

at Birchwood 

Primary for The 

Birches, 

Birchwood 

Nursery

S6/2008/2052/

OP

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Three Valleys Water, 

Bishops Rise

Library facilities/services serving the 

locality of the Development

£15,812.00

S6/2008/2052/

OP

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Three Valleys Water, 

Bishops Rise

Youth facilities/services serving the 

locality of the Development

£3,513.00 Improvement and 

extension of 

facilities at 

Breaks Manor

£3513

P
age 75



Welwyn 

Hatfield BC 

Ref

Electoral 

Division

Town Address Use Clause Remaining Approvals Possible 

Schemes

S6/2008/1948/

MA

Hatfield 

Rural ED

Brookmans 

Park

Lower Woodside Farm 

Lower Woodside Hill 

Road

Library additional facilities serving the 

locality of the Development

£1,900.00

S6/2011/2348/

MA 

Hatfield 

Rural ED

Cuffley 69 Station Road Library Towards the cost of providing 

additional and/or improved 

library facilities serving the 

locality of the Development

£1,721.45

S6/2013/2231/

MA 

Hatfield 

Rural ED

Hatfield Land at 1-12 Green 

Close

Library additional facilities serving the 

locality of the Development

£2,300.69

S6/2013/2231/

MA 

Hatfield 

Rural ED

Hatfield Land at 1-12 Green 

Close

Secondary facilities serving the locality of 

the Development

£59,208.69

S6/2013/2231/

MA 

Hatfield 

Rural ED

Hatfield Land at 1-12 Green 

Close

Youth facilities serving the locality of 

the Development

£1,054.29

P
age 76



Welwyn 

Hatfield BC 

Ref

Electoral 

Division

Town Address Use Clause Remaining Approvals Possible 

Schemes

S6/2008/654/M

A

Hatfield 

Rural ED

Potters Bar Claregate Great North 

Road

Library To provide facilities serving the 

locality of the development

£3,906.00

S6/2007/925/M

A

Hatfield 

South ED

Hatfield Land at Hazel Grove 

Primary School, Hazel 

Grove

Library additional facilities serving the 

locality of the Development

£6,732.00

S6/2007/925/M

A

Hatfield 

South ED

Hatfield Land at Hazel Grove 

Primary School, Hazel 

Grove

Youth additional facilities serving the 

locality of the Development

£4,305.00 Improvement and 

extension of 

facilities at 

Breaks Manor

£4359.26

N6/2012/0406/

FP

Welwyn ED Welwyn 18 Great North Road Secondary Education facilities serving the 

locality of the development

£13,638.09

N6/2013/0821/

MA 

Welwyn ED Welwyn Former Clock Hotel, 

Church Street

Library Facilities serving the locality of 

the Development

£6,500.57

N6/2013/0821/

MA 

Welwyn ED Welwyn Former Clock Hotel, 

Church Street

Secondary Facilities serving the locality of 

the Development

£20,930.29

N6/2009/1765/

MA

Welwyn ED Welwyn Former Ford Garage, 

Bypass Road

Childcare Additional facilities/services 

serving the locality of the 

development

£1,000.00

N6/2009/1765/

MA

Welwyn ED Welwyn Former Ford Garage, 

Bypass Road

Youth Additional facilities/services 

serving the locality of the 

development

£1,000.00

N6/2009/1506/

MA

Welwyn ED Welwyn Land adj 55 Mardley 

Hill

Childcare Facilities serving the locality of 

the Development

£1,818.64

N6/2009/1506/

MA

Welwyn ED Welwyn Land adj 55 Mardley 

Hill

Library Additional facilities serving the 

locality of the Development

£2,518.27

N6/2012/1778/

OP

Welwyn ED Welwyn The Frythe Childcare facilities serving the locality of 

the Development.  Phase 1 & 2

£11,709.10

N6/2012/1778/

OP

Welwyn ED Welwyn The Frythe Childcare facilities serving the locality of 

the Development. Phase 4

£19,984.94

N6/2012/1778/

OP

Welwyn ED Welwyn The Frythe Library facilities serving the locality of 

the Development. Phase 1 & 2

£14,786.90

N6/2012/1778/

OP

Welwyn ED Welwyn The Frythe Library facilities serving the locality of 

the Development. Phase 4

£26,286.79

N6/2012/1778/

OP

Welwyn ED Welwyn The Frythe Nursery facilities serving the locality of 

the Development. Phase 1 & 2

£29,508.74

N6/2012/1778/

OP

Welwyn ED Welwyn The Frythe Nursery facilities serving the locality of 

the Development. Phase 4

£48,136.11

N6/2012/1778/

OP

Welwyn ED Welwyn The Frythe Primary facilities serving the locality of 

the Development. Phase 1 & 2

£218,912.56

P
age 77



Welwyn 

Hatfield BC 

Ref

Electoral 

Division

Town Address Use Clause Remaining Approvals Possible 

Schemes

N6/2012/1778/

OP

Welwyn ED Welwyn The Frythe Primary facilities serving the locality of 

the Development. Phase 4

£366,054.95

N6/2012/1778/

OP

Welwyn ED Welwyn The Frythe Secondary facilities serving the locality of 

the Development. Phase 1 & 2

£198,795.70

N6/2012/1778/

OP

Welwyn ED Welwyn The Frythe Secondary facilities serving the locality of 

the Development. Phase 4

£410,167.91

N6/2012/1778/

OP

Welwyn ED Welwyn The Frythe Youth facilities serving the locality of 

the Development. Phase 1 & 2

£3,773.32

N6/2012/1778/

OP

Welwyn ED Welwyn The Frythe Youth facilities serving the locality of 

the Development. Phase 4

£7,812.50

N6/2005/1460I

FP

Welwyn 

Garden City 

South ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Attimore Hall and 

Attimore Barns, The 

Ridgeway

Youth Towards the costs of providing 

additional youth facilities serving 

the locality of the Development

£5,797.29

N6/2004/1334/

FP

Welwyn 

Garden City 

South ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Land at the Ridgeway 

and off Black Fan Rd

Library Providing additional library 

facilities for the locality of the 

development

£24,555.05

N6/2004/1334/

FP

Welwyn 

Garden City 

South ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Land at the Ridgeway 

and off Black Fan Rd

Youth Providing additional youth and 

childcare facilities for the locality 

of the development

£27,959.95

N6/2011/0218/

MA 

Welwyn 

Garden City 

South ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Land to rear of 217-243 

Knella Road

Library Towards the cost of additional 

Libraries facilities serving the 

locality of the Development 

£2,528.00

N6/2013/0491/

MA 

Welwyn 

Garden City 

South ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

The Hyde, Hollybush 

Lane

Childcare additional facilities/services 

serving the locality of the 

Development

£1,642.11

N6/2013/0491/

MA 

Welwyn 

Garden City 

South ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

The Hyde, Hollybush 

Lane

Library additional facilities/services 

serving the locality of the 

Development

£1,948.22

N6/2013/0491/

MA 

Welwyn 

Garden City 

South ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

The Hyde, Hollybush 

Lane

Secondary additional facilities/services 

serving the locality of the 

Development

£11,298.17

P
age 78



Appendix 3 - Herts County Council Traffic Light Report (Environment) as at 29 Dec 2015

Welwyn 

Hatfield BC 

Ref

Electoral 

Division

Town Address Use Clause Remaining Approvals

N6/2006/0923/

OP

Haldens 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Sir Frederic 

Osborn School

Sustainab

le 

Transport

HIGHWAY 

INFRASTRUCTURE:

Towards the design and 

construction of highway 

improvement works traffic 

studies improvements to 

public transport or such other 

measures as will encourage 

users of the Development to 

travel to and from the 

Development by means of  

transport other than the 

private car

£59,639.00

N6/2013/1642/

MA 

Haldens 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Tesco, Shire 

Park

Other SAFEGUARD SUM:

used to implement any 

remedial measures as 

referred to in the Travel Plan 

to be carried out on land that 

is public highway (or such 

other measures agreed in 

consultation with the Owner) 

required if the Annual 

Monitoring Report indicates in 

any of Year 1 or Year 2 or 

Year 3 or Year 4 that the 

Travel Plan Target for that 

year have not been met. 

£100,800.00

N6/2013/1642/

MA 

Haldens 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Tesco, Shire 

Park

Travel 

Plan 

Monitorin

g

Travel Plan Monitoring Fee for 

monitoring compliance with 

this Agreement

£6,000.00

N6/2012/0425/

MA

Haldens 

ED

Welwyn-

Garden-

City

20 Black Fan 

Road

Sustainab

le 

Transport

Towards the costs of the 

design construction and 

implementation of sustainable 

transport measures which 

measures may include (but 

not be limited to) measures 

identified in the Welwyn 

Garden City Urban Transport 

Plan highway improvement 

works traffic management 

schemes traffic studies 

improvements to public 

transport or such other 

measures as will encourage 

users of the Development to 

travel to and from the 

Development by means of 

transport other than the 

private car 

£29,929.00

N6/2009/2259/

MA 

Handside 

and 

Peartree 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Former Chieftain 

PH Cole Green 

Lane

Sustainab

le 

Transport

towards sustainable transport 

measures including passenger 

transport infrastructure 

improvements design and 

construction of highway 

improvement works traffic 

management schemes traffic 

studies improvements to 

public transport or such other 

measures as  will encourage 

users of the Development to 

travel to and from the 

Development by means of 

transport other than the 

private car 

£16,536.00

Page 79



Welwyn 

Hatfield BC 

Ref

Electoral 

Division

Town Address Use Clause Remaining Approvals

N6/2011/1177/

FP 

Handside 

and 

Peartree 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Former Parkway 

School

Sustainab

le 

Transport

Towards the design and 

construction of highway 

improvement works traffic 

management schemes traffic 

studies improvements to 

public transport and/or 

measures as will encourage 

users of the Development to 

travel to and from the 

Development by means of  

transport other than the 

private car 

£3,629.00 £11625.00 

Approved 

(13/07/2015) 

1516/WH/19 Rooks 

Hill Parkway, 

Turnmore Dale 

roundabout 

pedestrian 

improvements 

N6/2010/1776/

MA

Handside 

and 

Peartree 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

FORMER 

ROCHE 

BUILDINGS

Highway 

Works

Towards improvement works 

at Broadwater Road/Bridge 

Road signal junction

£79,319.00

N6/2010/1776/

MA

Handside 

and 

Peartree 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

FORMER 

ROCHE 

BUILDINGS

Sustainab

le 

Transport

Towards funding two 

replacement bus shelters and 

weekend and evening bus 

services or such measures as 

will encourage users of the 

Development to travel to and 

from the Development by 

means of transport other than 

the private car

£74,366.00 £16000.00 

Approved 

(06/11/2015) 

1516/WH/44 

Construction of 2 

bus shelters new 

the Roche 

Development

£77228.00 

Approved 

(10/12/2014) 

1415/WH/30 

Improved bus 

services 601 to St 

Albans and new 

Saturday service 

314 Bus Station via 

Broadwater Road
N6/2010/1776/

MA

Handside 

and 

Peartree 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

FORMER 

ROCHE 

BUILDINGS

Traffic 

Regulatio

n Order 

Towards the cost of a Traffic 

Regulation Order to extend 

periods of restricted car 

parking on Broadwater Road 

and the surrounding area

£5,046.00

N6/2014/2743/

FP 

Handside 

and 

Peartree 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Indigo Court Travel 

Plan 

Monitorin

g

Towards the costs of 

monitoring the Travel Plan 

serving the locality of the 

Development

£6,000.00

Handside 

and 

Peartree 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Longcroft Lane Sustainab

le 

Transport

Sustainable transport 

measures/improvements in 

Welwyn Garden City

£1,846.13

N6/2008/2103/

MA

Handside 

and 

Peartree 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Sainsbury's 

Supermarket

Sustainab

le 

Transport

Towards the design 

contruction and 

implementation of sustainable 

transport measures which 

measures shall include (but 

not limited to) highway 

improvement works traffic 

management schemes traffic 

studies improvements to 

public transport or such other 

measures as will encourage 

users of the Development to 

travel to and from the 

Development by means of 

transport other than the 

private car

£464,317.10 £13000.00 

Approved 

(17/06/2014) 

1415/WH/15 

Church Road 

Pedestrian 

Enhancement

Page 80



Welwyn 

Hatfield BC 

Ref

Electoral 

Division

Town Address Use Clause Remaining Approvals

N6/2007/256/F

P

Handside 

and 

Peartree 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Waitrose Ltd, 

Bridge Road

Sustainab

le 

Transport

design, construction and 

implementation of sustainable 

transport measures which 

shall include but not limited to 

highway improvement works, 

traffic management schemes, 

traffic studies, improvements 

to public transport or such 

other measures as will 

encourage users of the 

development to travel to and 

from the development by 

means of transport other than 

the private car

£0.00 £5705.45 Approved 

(20/08/2015) 

1516/WH/2 2 new 

bus stops on The 

Campus - 

ITP12069

N6/2013/1938/

MA 

Handside 

and 

Peartree 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City 

Welwyn and 

Hatfield Borough 

Council

Sustainab

le 

Transport

Towards the design and 

construction of highway 

improvement works traffic 

management schemes traffic 

studies improvements to 

public transport or such other 

measures that will promote 

accessibility by sustainable 

means including bus cycling 

and walking to mitigate the 

impact of the Development 

£20,921.00

S6/2014/1052/

MA 

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield 45 Roe Green 

Lane

Sustainab

le 

Transport

Towards the design and 

construction of highway 

improvement works traffic 

management schemes traffic 

studies improvements to 

public transport and/or such 

measures as will encourage 

users of the Development to 

travel to and from the 

Development by means of 

transport other than the 

private car

£9,970.00

S6/2010/3088/

OP 

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield 46 The Common Sustainab

le 

Transport

Towards design construction 

and implementation of 

sustainable transport 

measures which measures 

shall include (but not limited 

to) highway improvement 

works traffic management 

schemes traffic studies 

improvements to public 

transport or such other 

measures as will encourage 

users of the development to 

travel to and from the 

development by means of 

transport other than the 

private car 

£30,808.00

S6/2011/1560/

MA 

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Former Bill 

Salmon Centre, 

88 Town Centre

Sustainab

le 

Transport

Towards the design and 

construction of highway 

improvement works traffic 

management schemes traffic 

studies improvements to 

public transport and/or 

measures as will encourage 

users of the Development to 

travel to and from the 

Development by means of 

transport other than the 

private car 

£8,368.00

Page 81



Welwyn 

Hatfield BC 

Ref

Electoral 

Division

Town Address Use Clause Remaining Approvals

S6/1999/1115/

OP & 

S6/2003/656/F

P

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Former Sports 

Ground to 

Smurfit Factory

Highway 

Works

All or any of the off site works 

as described in the Hatfield 

Aerodrome SPG and 

improvements as required by 

the Highway Authority and 

improvements or extensions 

to the footpath and cycleway 

networks and linkages as 

described in the Hatfield 

Aerodrome SPG 

£39,767.83

S6/1064/99/O

P

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Hatfield 

Aerodrome, 

Comet Way

Other PARKING CONTROLS 

CONTRIBUTION:

Design, implementation and 

enforcement of parking control 

schemes including public 

consultation and publication of 

TROs in the Ellenbrook 

residential estate and in 

Hatfield Garden Village

£0.00 £105739.37 

Approved 

(18/08/2015) 

1516/WH/38 

Ellenbrook parking 

scheme & 

enforcement

S6/1064/99/O

P

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Hatfield 

Aerodrome, 

Comet Way

Other SPINE ROAD 

MAINTENANCE: Towards 

future maintenance

£256,728.00

S6/1064/99/O

P

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Hatfield 

Aerodrome, 

Comet Way

Other TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT 

CONTRIBUTION:

Design and implementation of 

traffic calming schemes 

including public consultation 

and publication of TROs in the 

Birchwood Residential Estate, 

Woods Avenue, Travellers 

Lane and Bishops Rise within 

the context of the Hatfield 

Aerodrome SPG

£216,384.01

S6/1064/99/O

P

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Hatfield 

Aerodrome, 

Comet Way

Passeng

er 

Transport

CENTRAL INTERCHANGE 

CONTRIBUTION:

design and implementation of 

bus interchange in Hatfield 

Town centre and or 

improvements to the 

interchange facilities at 

Hatfield railway station 

£0.00 £695728.55 

Approved 

(17/06/2014) 

1415/WH/1 Phase 

2 of the 

improvements to 

the station, 

including a new bus 

interchange – 

ITP15019
S6/1064/99/O

P

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Hatfield 

Aerodrome, 

Comet Way

Sustainab

le 

Transport

Towards the provision of new 

bus services and/or 

improvement to existing bus 

services with a destination 

within or adjoining the site and 

any related purpose including 

provision of subsidies to bus 

operating companies, the 

purchase/rental/lease of new 

vehicles, implementation of 

bus shelters, bus stops, bus 

lanes and related signage or 

equipment, establishment and 

installation of real time 

information systems and other 

electronic information systems 

designed to encourage 

greater bus usage, the 

publication of information 

relating to the availability of 

bus services, construction of 

park and ride schemes and/or 

the establishment/ 

enhancement/ expansion of 

existing bus depot terminals 

and combined transport 

facilities and other similar or 

£0.00 £583020.00 

Approved 

(02/12/2015) 

1516/WH/37 

Continued support 

for the network of 

bus services to and 

from Hatfield 

Business Park

£900000.00 

Approved 

(17/06/2014) 

1415/WH/1 Phase 

2 of the 

improvements to 

the station, 

including a new bus 

interchange – 

ITP15019

£1412877.14 

Pending 

 1516/WH/53 

Page 82



Welwyn 

Hatfield BC 

Ref

Electoral 

Division

Town Address Use Clause Remaining Approvals

S6/1064/99/O

P

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Hatfield 

Aerodrome, 

Comet Way

Sustainab

le 

Transport

TRANSPORT SUBSIDY:

The provision of subsidies to 

bus operator companies to 

provide free or discounted 

fares for residents, occupiers 

and employees of the 

development and/or provide 

residents and employees 

and/or their staff with 

vouchers/season 

tickets/loans/bus passes or 

other schemes and incentives 

to use local bus services 

and/or promotion or 

advertisement of the 

availability of bus services

£242,625.46 £24820.00 

Approved 

(07/01/2015) 

1415/WH/54 

Sustainable travel 

options map - 

online mapping tool 

and pocket maps

S6/1999/0971/

FP

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Land at former 

Smurfit Factory 

Site, Brayfields

Highway 

Works

(1) Any off site highway works 

as described in the Hatfield 

Aerodrome SPG and/or traffic 

calming and sustainable traffic 

within a radius of 10km of the 

application site. 

(2) Traffic management 

measures at Green Lanes and 

Birchwood Estate. 

£55,447.95

S6/2010/0111/

OP

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Mount Pleasant 

Depot, Mount 

Pleasant Lane

Sustainab

le 

Transport

Towards the costs of the 

design construction and 

implementation of sustainable 

transport measures which 

measures may include (but 

not limited to) upgrading of 

bus stops in Great North Road 

footway improvements along 

The Dell other highway 

improvement work traffic 

management schemes traffic 

studies improvements to 

public transport or such other 

measures as will encourage 

users of the Development to 

travel to and from the 

Development by means of 

transport other than private 

motor vehicles or improve 

highway conditions on parts of 

the highway network affected 

by traffic associated with the 

Development 

£166,844.00

S6/2010/0111/

OP

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Mount Pleasant 

Depot, Mount 

Pleasant Lane

Traffic 

Calming

Towards the design 

construction and 

implementation of traffic 

calming measures in Mount 

Pleasant Lane Hatfield 

Hertfordshire

£55,789.00

S6/2012/2004/

MA

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield The Cat and 

Fiddle, 199 St 

Albans Road 

West 

Sustainab

le 

Transport

as a contribution towards the 

design and construction of 

highway improvement works 

traffic management schemes 

traffic studies improvements 

to public transport or such 

other measures as will 

encourage users of the 

Development to travel to and 

from the Development by 

means of transport other than 

the private car 

£8,369.00

Page 83



Welwyn 

Hatfield BC 

Ref

Electoral 

Division

Town Address Use Clause Remaining Approvals

S6/2008/2052/

OP

Hatfield 

North ED

Hatfield Three Valleys 

Water, Bishops 

Rise

Sustainab

le 

Transport

Towards design construction 

and implementation of 

sustainable transport 

measures which measures 

shall include (but not limited 

to) highway improvement 

works traffic management 

schemes traffic studies 

improvements to public 

transport or such other 

measures as will encourage 

users of the development to 

travel to and from the 

development by means of 

transport other than the 

private car 

£140,157.00

S6/2008/1948/

MA

Hatfield 

Rural ED

Brookma

ns Park

Lower 

Woodside Farm 

Lower 

Woodside Hill 

Road

Sustainab

le 

Transport

Towards design construction 

and implementation of 

sustainable transport 

measures which measures 

shall include (but not limited 

to) highway improvement 

works traffic management 

schemes traffic studies 

improvements to public 

transport or such other 

measures as will encourage 

users of the development to 

travel to and from the 

development by means of 

transport other than the 

private car 

£12,194.00

S6/2011/2348/

MA 

Hatfield 

Rural ED

Cuffley 69 Station Road Sustainab

le 

Transport

Towards the improvement of 

bus shelters within the locality 

of the Development or such 

other measures as the 

Director of Environment in his 

absolute discretion determines 

will encourage users

and occupiers of the 

Development to travel to and 

from the Development by 

means of transport other than 

the private car 

£9,048.00

S6/2013/2231/

MA 

Hatfield 

Rural ED

Hatfield Land at 1-12 

Green Close

Sustainab

le 

Transport

Towards the design and 

construction of highway 

improvements, traffic 

management schemes, traffic 

studies, improvements to 

public transport and/or 

measure which will encourage 

user of the Development to 

use means of transport other 

than private cars

£15,896.00

S6/2012/1928/

PP 

Hatfield 

South ED

Hatfield Land at Bishops 

Rise, University 

of Hertfordshire  

Sustainab

le 

Transport

Towards the costs of the 

design construction and 

implementation of sustainable 

transport measures and in 

respect of a cycle link along 

Woods Avenue between 

Bishops Rise and Travellers 

Lane Hatfield

£200,000.00

Page 84



Welwyn 

Hatfield BC 

Ref

Electoral 

Division

Town Address Use Clause Remaining Approvals

S6/2007/925/M

A

Hatfield 

South ED

Hatfield Land at Hazel 

Grove Primary 

School, Hazel 

Grove

Sustainab

le 

Transport

Towards design construction 

and implementation of 

sustainable transport 

measures which measures 

shall include (but not limited 

to) highway improvement 

works traffic management 

schemes traffic studies 

improvements to public 

transport or such other 

measures  as will encourage 

users of the development to 

travel to and from the 

development by means of 

transport other than the 

private car 

£5,580.46

S6/2001/66/FP Hatfield 

South ED

Hatfield Travellers Lane, 

Welham Green

Traffic 

Regulatio

n Order 

TRO Deposit - towards the 

costs to the County Council of 

processing advertising and 

implementing the TRO 

including the cost of any 

works required to facilitate the 

TRO - to impose stopping 

loading and waiting 

restrictions on vehicles along 

Travellers Lane

£1,712.40

Hatfield 

South ED

Welham 

Green

148-150 Dixons 

Hill Road 

(Charkham 

Mews)

Sustainab

le 

Transport

Sustainable transport 

measures in Welham Green

£5,638.00

S6/0873/98 Hatfield 

South ED

Welham 

Green

Tesco 

Distribution 

Centre

Rights of 

Way 

Improvem

ents

Improvements to the existing 

rights of way located near the 

western boundary of the 

development site and running 

from Pooleys Lane, Welham 

Green to Travellers Lane, 

Hatfied.

£6,228.80

N6/2013/0821/

MA 

Welwyn 

ED

Welwyn Former Clock 

Hotel, Church 

Street

Sustainab

le 

Transport

Towards the design and 

construction of highway 

improvement works traffic 

management schemes traffic 

studies improvements to 

public transport and/or 

measures as will encourage 

users of the Development to 

travel to and from the 

Development by means of 

transport other than the 

private car 

£50,387.00

N6/2009/1765/

MA

Welwyn 

ED

Welwyn Former Ford 

Garage, Bypass 

Road

Sustainab

le 

Transport

towards the design 

construction and 

implementation of sustainable 

transport measures which 

measures shall include (but 

not limited to) relocation of the 

pedestrian crossing/traffic 

island on Bypass Road, 

Welwyn other highway 

improvement works traffic 

management schemes traffic 

studies improvements to 

public transport or such other 

measures as will encourage 

users of the development to 

travel to and from the 

development by means of 

transport other than the 

private car 

£66,229.00

Page 85



Welwyn 

Hatfield BC 

Ref

Electoral 

Division

Town Address Use Clause Remaining Approvals

N6/2012/1778/

OP

Welwyn 

ED

Welwyn The Frythe Passeng

er 

Transport

Bus services into the site to 

serve the development during 

the weekday peak periods and 

on Saturdays

£6,891.00 £27109.00 

Approved 

(06/11/2015) 

1516/WH/40 Bus 

services 215 & 315 

to be diverted via 

Wiltshere Park
N6/2014/2337/

MA 

Welwyn 

ED

Woolmer 

Green

Knebworth Care 

Home

Sustainab

le 

Transport

towards the design and 

construction of highway 

improvement works traffic 

management schemes traffic 

studies improvements to 

public transport or such other 

measures as will encourage 

users of the Development to 

travel to and from the 

Development by means of 

transport other than the 

private car 

£7,499.00

N6/2014/2337/

MA 

Welwyn 

ED

Woolmer 

Green

Knebworth Care 

Home

Travel 

Plan 

Monitorin

g

Monitoring the Travel Plan £6,000.00

C6/0482/88/O

P

Welwyn 

Garden 

City South 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Holy Trinity 

School Site, 

Chequersfield

Passeng

er 

Transport

Towards the costs of 

providing two new bus stops 

and a new bus shelter and 

surfacing and associated 

ancilliary works in Chequers

£17,559.38

C6/0482/88/O

P

Welwyn 

Garden 

City South 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Holy Trinity 

School Site, 

Chequersfield

Highway 

Works

for the provision of either a 

crossing in the future or if and 

when demand exists or to 

improve the existing subway 

routes under the Chequers 

roundabout 

£0.00 £24325.00 

Approved 

(10/12/2014) 

1415/WH/50 

Improvements to 

subway tunnels - 

A1000 Chequers 

Roundabout - ITP 

15034
N6/2007/556/

MA

Welwyn 

Garden 

City South 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Hornbeams 

Centre, 

Ridgeway

Sustainab

le 

Transport

towards the design 

construction and 

implementation of highway 

improvement works traffic 

management schemes traffic 

studies improvements to 

public transport or such other 

measures as will encourage 

users of the Development to 

travel to and from the 

Development by means of 

transport other than the 

private car

£26,123.00

N6/2011/0218/

MA 

Welwyn 

Garden 

City South 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

Land to rear of 

217-243 Knella 

Road

Sustainab

le 

Transport

Towards the design and 

construction of highway 

improvement works traffic 

management schemes traffic 

studies improvements to 

public transport or such other 

measures as will encourage 

users of the Development to 

travel to and from the 

Development by means other 

than the private car

£14,866.00

Page 86



Welwyn 

Hatfield BC 

Ref

Electoral 

Division

Town Address Use Clause Remaining Approvals

N6/2011/0358/

OP 

Welwyn 

Garden 

City South 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

QE11 Hospital, 

Howlands

Passeng

er 

Transport

Towards:

(a) improvements to the 

adjoining bus shelters of the 

site to meet the Disability 

Discrimation Action 1995 

requirements

(b) the placement of two 

outside departure screens 

with AVL/Real Time 

Information

(c) a new ePIP (electronic 

passenger information point) 

within the site

£35,524.14

N6/2013/0491/

MA 

Welwyn 

Garden 

City South 

ED

Welwyn 

Garden 

City

The Hyde, 

Hollybush Lane

Sustainab

le 

Transport

Towards the design and 

construction of highway 

improvement works traffic 

management schemes traffic 

studies improvements to 

public transport or such other 

measures as will encourage 

users of the Development to 

travel to and from the 

Development by meansof  

transport other than the 

private car

£21,381.00

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4 - Notes of Meeting 19 April 2016  

Cllr Mandy Perkins - Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Executive Member 

Lisa Hughes – WHBC 

Simon Chivers – WHBC 

Chris Carter – WHBC 

Sue Fogden – East and North Hertfordshire and Herts Valleys Clinical Commissioning 

Groups (CCGs) 

Laura Griggs – NHS England 

 

The purpose of the meeting was for Cllr Perkins, on behalf of other elected members, to gain 

an understanding from colleagues in the NHS as to how and when they respond to planning 

applications and seek planning obligations payments.  

 

Cllr Perkins started by setting out the concern amongst members that responses from the 

NHS bodies are not being made on all relevant planning applications and that this may mean 

that they are missing out on funding opportunities. 

 

SF set out the differing responsibilities of NHS England and the CCGs, that being that NHS 

England is principally responsible for the provision of GP services and that the CCGs are 

responsible for commissioning the types of care usually provided in the community, main 

hospitals as well as mental health care. 

 

SF explained that recent reorganisations in the NHS had presented significant challenges in 

terms of effective engagement with the planning system, particularly in terms of responding 

to consultations on planning applications. However, in Welwyn Hatfield, NHS England and 

the CCG are now seeking to work together on responses to planning applications.  

 

SF noted however that the 21 day timescale for responses to planning applications was 

often very challenging for the NHS to meet, particularly if they did not have any “off the shelf” 

schemes towards which any planning obligations could be directed. It was discussed that 

larger planning applications which often result in a greater need for health services, can 

often have a longer negotiation period before a decision is made and that in such 

circumstances it may be possible for earlier engagement and consultation to enable  an 

appropriate scheme to be put together in order to justify a planning obligations contribution. 

 

Alongside the issue of the length of the consultation period, SF and LG raised the problem of 

the CIL regulations pooling restrictions, the so called “rule of five”. This means that no more 

than five planning obligations can be pooled together towards one specific piece or type of 

infrastructure. This presents difficulties for consultation responses as it relies upon “oven 

ready” schemes for increasing healthcare capacity in the area of the borough where 

development is proposed. Projects for enhancing or increasing healthcare capacity often 

emerge over lengthy periods of time and it is not always possible for a scheme to be 

advanced enough at the point at which a justification for planning obligations is required. 

This pooling restriction, and indeed the uncertainties with it, is therefore a constraint on the 

ability of the NHS to collect monies from proposed developments. 

 

Page 89



MP expressed concerns from residents about how additional healthcare facilities will be 

provided in the borough as the population continues to grow and new residential 

developments come through the system. SF explained that the NHS bodies use the same 

population projections, that the council includes in the local plan, for managing service 

capacity. It was agreed that residents in some parts of the borough do face challenges in 

securing appointments at their nearest surgery. 

SF explained that investment priorities for surgeries are based on a number of factors and 

criteria NHSE has launched a Primary Care Transformation Fund and the CCG on behalf of 

its practices will be submitting bids by 30 June 2016. NHSE will confirm which bids were 

approved to the next stage by September 2016. 

 

SC noted that NHS England and the CCG are in ongoing dialogue with the planning policy 

team on infrastructure requirements to support housing growth arising from the Local Plan. A 

further meeting in this regard is scheduled for 3rd of May to discuss the current update of the 

Council’s Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP). 

 

MP suggested that NHS England and the CCG may wish to attend the Hertfordshire 

Infrastructure and Investment panel (HIIP) as there has not been any update to that group 

from the NHS for some time. This would also help to raise the profile of this issue county 

wide.  

Page 90



Part I 
Item No: 0 
Main author: Colin Haigh 
Executive Member: Cllr Mandy Perkins 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING & PLANNING PANEL – 11 AUGUST 2016 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR (GOVERNANCE) 
 
HERTFORDSHIRE INFRASTRUCTURE AND PLANNING PARTNERSHIP (HIPP) 
ANNUAL REVIEW 2015/2016 
 
1 Executive Summary 

 
1.1 The Hertfordshire Infrastructure and Planning Partnership (HIPP) is a partnership 

of the ten borough/district councils and county council in Hertfordshire, as well as 
other invited guests such as the Hertfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership and 
Hertfordshire Local Nature Partnership.  Its purpose is to discuss and attempt to 
reach a shared approach on planning and infrastructure issues affecting the 
county, to help inform local plans, transport plans and other strategy documents 
and to help achieve the duty to co-operate and localism agendas.  It is attended 
by both elected councillors and officers from each authority and is chaired by Cllr 
Mandy Perkins. 
 

2 Recommendation 
 
2.1 That the Panel notes the achievements of HIPP. 

 
3 Explanation 

 
3.1 The Annual Review sets out the achievements of HIPP over the course of 2015-

2016.  This includes proactive engagement with the Greater London Authority 
and other suburban authorities in respect of the London Plan, commented on the 
Hertfordshire Transport Vision and Rail Strategy, commissioned research into 
development viability, undertook a review of housing and population projections, 
progressed a county-wide Water Study, a joint workshop with the health sector, 
promoted sustainability and good design through the Building Futures initiative, 
alerted MPs to the considerable level of infrastructure investment required to 
support growth, submitted consultation responses to the Dept for Communities 
and Local Government on changes to national legislation and national planning 
policies and worked with local education institutions to increase the supply and 
quality of planning officers in the county. 
 

3.2 It is anticipated that many of these activities will continue into 2016/2017, such as 
engagement with the Greater London Authority in respect of the London Plan, 
the Hertfordshire Transport Vision, the county-wide Water Study and recruitment 
and training of planning officers, as well as any new issues as they arise. 
 

3.3 Copies of HIPP’s terms of reference, agendas and minutes are available at: 
http://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/services/envplan/plan/hccdevplan/HIPP/ 
 

4 Link to Corporate Priorities 
 

Page 91

Agenda Item 10

http://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/services/envplan/plan/hccdevplan/HIPP/


4.1 The Council’s Business Plan 2015-2018 contains corporate priorities to meet the 
borough’s housing need, help build a strong local economy, protect and enhance 
the environment and maintain a safe and healthy community. 
 

5 Implications 
 

5.1 There are no legal, financial, risk management, security/terrorism, procurement, 
climate change or policy implications associated with this report.  HIPP is a 
voluntary partnership with no direct membership fee, although each authority 
contributes £3,000 per year to the employment of a Hertfordshire Planning Co-
ordinator.  The cost of any work or studies agreed by the Partnership is generally 
funded jointly by the constituent councils.  The Terms of Reference make clear 
that HIPP is not a formal decision-making body and will not fetter the decision-
making process of individual authorities. 
 

6 Equalities and Diversity 
 

6.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out in connection with 
this report. 
 

Name of author: Colin Haigh 
Title: Head of Planning 
Date: August 2016 
 
Background Papers: 
 
 HIPP Annual Review 2015/2016 

Page 92



1 
 

 

HERTFORDSHIRE INFRASTRUCTURE & PLANNING PARTNERSHIP 

ANNUAL REVIEW 2015/16 

 

 

 
         HIPP & Supporting Officer Structure 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Other Officer Groups: 

 HPG Development Plans 

 HPG Development Management 

 Hertfordshire Economic Development Officers Group (HEDOG) 

 Landscape & Green Infrastructure Group 

 
 
The Hertfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) is a key partner 
of HIPP.  There is a permanent invitation for the LEP to attend and 
participate in HIPP meetings where they provide regular updates on 
their activities. 
 
 

 

 

 

Key Officials 2015/16 

 

HIPP Chair:    Cllr Mandy Perkins (Welwyn Hatfield B.C.) 

HIPP Vice Chair:   Cllr Derrick Ashley (Hertfordshire C.C.) 

 

HPG Chair (Officer Group): Jane Custance (Watford B.C.) 

 

 

HIPP 

Member Forum of all 

Hertfordshire Authorities 

Hertfordshire Planning 

Group (HPG) 

Heads of Planning of all 

Hertfordshire Authorities, 

Herts LEP & Herts LNP.  

 

Page 93



2 
 

Key Achievements 

 

 Proactively engaged with the Greater London Authority and other councils in 

the East and South East with regard to the review of the London Plan and 

responding to the growth needs of the Wider South East. 

 Oversaw the development of map based information reflecting a range of 

evidence based material to support Strategic Planning and Local Plan work. 

 Supported and commented on Hertfordshire County Council’s Transport 

Vision and Rail Strategy. 

 Affordable Housing Viability Consultants Framework developed by Hertsmere 

Borough Council for use by all Hertfordshire Districts. 

 Agreed funding for research into viability and the Community Infrastructure 

Levy (CIL) and to address concerns that conventional viability consultants 

seem to lean towards supporting developer’s business models and 

calculations. 

 Undertook a review of Housing & Population projections and working within 

the Wider South East with a view to commissioning a technical consultant to 

review population and household projections. 

 Progressed a Water & Drainage Infrastructure project that will seek to tackle 

water supply deficits and waste water capacity issues. 

 Sought to improve engagement with the health sector through a joint 

workshop that made recommendations for ensuring good working 

relationships are established and sustained. 

 Worked with the Hertfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership in the delivery of 

key strategic infrastructure. 

 Took a lead role in the Local Transport Body and enhanced engagement with 

strategic transport infrastructure providers. 

 Promoted sustainability and good design by facilitating presentations by 

Building Futures and Design South East. 

 Alerted Hertfordshire MPs to the considerable level of infrastructure 

investment required to support growth and the competition for resources from 

other regions. 

 Submitted joint responses to the Department of Communities & Local 

Government (DCLG) on the CIL review; proposed changes to national 

Planning policy; the New Homes Bonus Technical Consultation; and the 

technical consultation on the implementation of planning changes. 

 Worked with local educational institutes with a view to improving professional 

and apprenticeship training opportunities for planning staff. 

 Identified and implemented opportunities for joint training provision across the 

county. 

 Lobbied for the localisation of planning fees. 

 

 

 

Page 94



3 
 

SUMMARY OF ACHIEVEMENTS DURING 2015/16 

 

Duty to Cooperate 
 
The duty to cooperate was a major priority for HIPP and was a regular feature at 
HIPP meetings during the year.  The main focus for HIPP related to working with 
other authorities across the Wider South East to engage with the Greater London 
Authority on its Review of the London Plan. 
 
Strategic Planning Framework (SPF) 
HIPP worked to develop a Strategic Planning Framework for Hertfordshire and each 
HIPP Member authority was asked to identify their top ten strategic planning issues; 
the key strategic issues of their neighbours that impinge on them; and their view of 
Hertfordshire and the sub region in 20 years time.  This information was collated and 
included in a report to HIPP.  It is intended to take this forward with a single issue 
facilitated event or meeting.  Work on the SPF is currently paused due to other 
events including a county devolution meeting held in early 2016.   
 
Future Arrangements for the Review of the London Plan/Engagement with 
London & the Wider South East 
HIPP has taken a proactive role in terms of engaging with the Greater London 
Authority (GLA) and other authorities in the East and South East in respect of the 
review of the London Plan and responding to the growth needs of the wider South 
East.  Following attendance at a Wider South East Summit, hosted by the GLA in 
March 2015, Hertfordshire Councils participated in a series of roundtable meetings 
for authorities in the East of England.  These dealt mainly will procedural matters and 
how arrangements for engagement across the Wider South East (WSE) might best 
be organised.  A second WSE summit was hosted by the GLA in December 2015 
and discussed a programme for the review of the London Plan.  Early priorities for 
collaboration and joint action are to centre around: 

 Preparation and timing for the full review of the London Plan; 

 Common understanding of data/evidence base; 

 Addressing barriers to housing delivery; and 

 Making the case for strategic infrastructure investment. 
 
A political steering group was established which comprises five members each from 
the East, South East and London.  This includes Cllr Linda Haysey a HIPP Member 
from East Herts who is a Conservative appointment on the group.  Cllr John Gardner 
a HIPP Member from Stevenage Borough Council is a substitute for the Labour 
Group.  The first meeting of the steering group was held on 10 March and discussed 
officer support and working arrangements; the programme for the review of the 
London Plan; barriers to housing delivery and strategic infrastructure.  It is proposed 
that the group will meet with the new London Mayor in July 2016. 
 
An East of England Growth and Infrastructure Group was also established which is 
made up of the elected Members from the East of England that are on the WSE 
Political Steering, plus their substitutes and the two East of England lead chief 
executives.  Consequently, it includes Cllr. Linda Haysey (East Herts), Cllr John 
Gardner (Stevenage) and John Wood (HCC Chief Executive).  The purpose of the 
group is to: 

Page 95



4 
 

 Discuss strategic issues pertinent to the East of England relevant to the WSE 
collaborative effort; 

 Provide leadership and direction to the East of England element of the WSE 
collaboration work programme; 

 Oversee the activities of the East of England SSPOLG; and 

 Act as a conduit between the WSE political steering group and the wider 
membership of the East of England LGA. 

 
The first meeting of the Group was held on 24 February 2016 and they discussed the 
draft agenda and terms of reference for the WSE Political Steering Group.  The 
Group also agreed that the LEP Chairs will be invited to meet with them in the 
autumn with the aim of working together to shape future engagement with London 
and the South East. 
 
The East of England Local Government Association (EELGA) is providing a 
significant level of support for these arrangements.  In addition, an officer group 
comprising representatives from London and the Wider South East and a separate 
group representing just the East exist to support this process.  Both groups include 
representatives of the Hertfordshire Planning Group. 
 
The East of England Officer group, called the East of England Strategic Spatial 
Planning Officer Liaison Group (EE SSPOLG) is developing a full Technical Work 
Programme that will include timelines and costings.  A fund of £100,000 has been 
approved to support this work.  The technical work will involve a range of work 
streams covering housing, transport and economic growth projections.  It is 
suggested that a planning/economic growth professional be seconded from a 
member council, using some of the proposed £100,000 funding, to direct and 
oversee the work on behalf of the East of England. 
 
 
Strategic Planning & Delivery of Growth 
 
Map Based Strategic Planning Evidence Base 
A series of map information showing a range of evidence based material is 
maintained in order to support strategic planning work.  This includes information on 
proposed housing developments; where people are employed; forecast employment 
growth; journey to work trip origins and destinations; and road transport hotspots.  
HIPP authorities have worked, and will continue to work, in partnership to populate 
the supporting databases.  The data and maps will provide an input into the Strategic 
Planning Framework and the Districts’ Local Plan work. 
 
Transport Strategies 
Hertfordshire County Council progressed work during the year on developing a 
Transport Vision for the County.  A workshop was held with the business sector as 
well as a range of 1:1 meetings with Districts and reports to HIPP. 
 
The consultation for the Phase 2 transport vision work was completed in summer 
2015.  The study outlined options for future packages of major transport 
schemes/interventions.  Further stakeholder consultation is to take place in Summer 
2016 with the production of the final transport vision scheduled for December 2016. 

Page 96



5 
 

 
A rail strategy is also being developed which will be able to support lobbying for 
infrastructure investment.  A presentation on the Rail Strategy was made to the July 
HIPP meeting and HIPP suggested a series of improvements to be included in the 
final strategy. 
 
The County Council are also leading on developing a series of Growth & Transport 
Plans and a presentation was given to the March HIPP meeting.  This is a new 
approach, replacing the previous urban focused transport plans.  The new system 
better reflects the growth agenda and would be evidence led, based on broad travel 
patterns and would seek to maximise funding opportunities.  The aim is to produce 
the first one, for the M1/M25/A41, during the 2016/17 financial year.   
 
Affordable Housing Viability 
HIPP have recognised the need to provide adequate affordable housing through 
planning gain and recognised how this is being challenged by developers.  
Hertsmere Borough Council led on this work and a Consultants Framework for 
Affordable Housing Viability work, that can be used by all Hertfordshire authorities, 
has now been introduced. 
 
Further work is also being led by Hertfordshire County Council in respect of research 
into viability and the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).  This is in response to 
concerns that infrastructure requirements are being rejected by developers because 
of viability arguments and that assessments of viability by the conventional 
consultancies seem to lean more towards supporting developer’s business models 
and value calculations.  The proposal is to fund a study of the viability issues in the 
county, to be undertaken by a specialist who is independent of the main group of 
consultancies.  The work is to be progressed during 2016/17 and there will be 
workshops and/or presentations for Members and Officers. 
 
Population & Household Projections 
In March 2015 some concern was expressed at HIPP regarding the new ONS 
household projections that, due to assumptions related to household sizes, had in 
some cases indicated a small growth in population but a large increase in projected 
households.  Officers were asked to investigate further and more detailed analysis 
was undertaken and reported back to HIPP in March 2016.  It was noted that the 
GLA are developing further trend-based demographic modelling work to support the 
Review of the London Plan.  The model will potentially be made available on an 
open-source basis giving an opportunity to scrutinise it and consider a variation of a 
range of assumptions.  The GLA have offered to present the model to consultants 
undertaking SHMAs in the Wider South East. 
 
As referred to earlier in respect of the Review of the London Plan and Wider South 
East engagement a number of priority areas for collaboration have been identified.  
This includes achieving a common understanding of the data/evidence base and it is 
proposed to commission a technical consultant to review population and household 
projections in the Wider South East. 
 
 
 

Page 97



6 
 

Strategic Infrastructure 
 
Water & Drainage Infrastructure 
HIPP agreed to progress a joint project to identify the water infrastructure needs of 
Hertfordshire to 2050.  The HIPP authorities will work with the Environment Agency, 
Hertfordshire LEP and the water companies.  The project aims to look beyond the 
county boundary and attempts are to be made to identify other regional alliances to 
enable it to be extended into a major regional initiative. 
 
The infrastructure project will seek to tackle water supply deficits and waste water 
capacity issues.  The project has support from the water companies. 
 
At its October 2015 meeting HIPP received an update on the project and were 
informed that consultants had been appointed and that work had commenced.  The 
meeting was advised that Phase 1 of the study should be completed by the end of 
May 2016 and this will include assembling background information; modelling 
planned growth; assessing reasonable infrastructure options for water supply and 
waste water treatment; a critical assessment of the infrastructure planning and 
investment process.  The precise nature of the stage 2 work will be decided after the 
completion of Phase 1. Options for Phase 2 outputs include modelling at a finer level 
of detail, including the local level; smaller specific sub-area based studies; and 
exploration of a wide range of options for strategic packages of interventions for 
each scenario modelled   
 
Health Infrastructure Planning 
HIPP has previously received reports referring to the difficulties in engaging with the 
health sector in order to identify their infrastructure needs.  In response a joint 
workshop, involving health providers and local planning authorities, was held in June 
2015.   
 
The workshop saw a total of 33 Hertfordshire health professionals and local authority 
planners (representing all ten Districts/Boroughs and the County Council) come 
together to survey the relationship between spatial and health infrastructure planning 
in the county.  The aim now is to ensure that good working relationships are 
established and sustained. This includes preparing a list of key contacts in each 
organisation and exploring the potential for this group to meet on a regular basis, 
with options for smaller groups based around the CCG boundaries.  A further 
progress report to HIPP, with NHS/Clinical Commissioning Groups attending, is 
proposed for 2016/17. 
 
Hertfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) 
HIPP and its officer groups work closely with Hertfordshire Local Enterprise 
Partnership who is a key partner and delivers on a range of infrastructure activities in 
the county.  The LEP regularly attend both HIPP and officer group meetings and an 
update from them is a standing item on HIPP agendas. 
 
The LEP have progressed a number of projects around the following growth areas: 
A1(M); M1/M25 and M11/A10.  Funding of £1.8million for regeneration at Stevenage 
has been secured.  The LEP are also contributing about one third of the cost of 
developing the Hatfield Renewal Framework; and are funding projects at Watford 

Page 98



7 
 

Health Campus and Watford Business Park.  The LEP are partly or wholly funding 
infrastructure related projects for the A602; A120; Croxley; A10 transport modelling; 
a Transport package (including Hatfield Station); Maylands Transport Modelling; 
Stevenage Station Master Planning; Stevenage Transport Modelling and Stevenage 
Utilities. 
 
Local Transport Body 
The Chair of HIPP represents the organisation on the Board of the Local Transport 
Body (LTB).  
 
The LTB has proved a useful forum to engage with major transport infrastructure 
providers including Highways England and Network Rail who have attended and 
presented at meetings.  As a consequence the LTB, and therefore HIPP, have been 
able to engage in constructive discussions relating to implications of the Henley 
Review for rail investment in Hertfordshire and also the East-West Rail Corridor 
Study.   Updates have also been received on the major transport schemes in the 
county, including the Croxley Rail Link, proposals for the improvement of junction 25 
of the M25; the early study work being carried out on what options might be available 
to improve junctions 21A, 22 and 23 of the M 25; and Cross Rail 2. 
 
 
Sustainability in design and construction 
 
Building Futures 
The October 2015 meeting of HIPP received an update on the Building Futures 
project and a presentation, referred to elsewhere in this report, was also made at the 
December 2015 meeting.  Building Futures is a design review service delivered by 
Hertfordshire County Council and available to Hertfordshire Districts at a cost of 
£2,500 p.a.  During the year the Sustainable Design Toolkit was further enhanced.   
 
Promoting Good Design 
In addition to the Building Futures presentation to the HIPP meeting Design South 
East also outlined details of their services to the December 2015 HIPP meeting. 
 
 
Lobbying Activity 
 
A key area of activity for HIPP relates to lobbying.  This includes responding to 
government consultations and where it has done this it has concentrated on the 
more strategic level issues and also copied Hertfordshire MPs into its responses.  
HIPP responses to government consultations have, therefore, been in addition to the 
more detailed responses submitted by individual HIPP member authorities. 
 
Infrastructure Funding for Growth 
In December 2015 HIPP wrote to all Hertfordshire MPs to alert them to the 
considerable level of infrastructure investment that is required in order for 
Hertfordshire to adequately respond to the growth challenges and opportunities that 
exist across the wider region.  HIPP referred to the work it was progressing with the 
Greater London Authority and other authorities in the East and South East.  It 
stressed that for Hertfordshire to meet its own objectively assessed housing needs 

Page 99



8 
 

and, if necessary, any unmet needs of neighbouring areas including London, a 
significant increase in infrastructure funding was required.  HIPP especially 
expressed concern given the competition for resources from other regions, in 
particular the North. 
 
DCLG CIL Review 
HIPP responded to the government consultation on the Community Infrastructure 
Levy (CIL) and particularly concern that the cumulative effect of successive 
amendments to the CIL regulations had significantly widened the infrastructure gap 
by reducing the contribution CIL is able to make to funding.  HIPP supported 
proposals to enable borrowing against CIL receipts providing appropriate safeguards 
are in place; stressed the need to provide greater scope to apply CIL across 
administrative boundaries; called for relief for self build homes to be removed; that 
relief for starter homes should not be introduced; proposed that S106 pooling should 
be removed; called for the simplification and streamlining of regulatory requirements; 
and, given the numerous amendments to the CIL regulations, that a composite 
version of the regulations should be introduced along with more guidance on how 
CIL revenue can be spent. 
 
Proposed changes to National Planning Policy 
In February 2016 HIPP responded to the DCLG consultation on proposed changes 
to national planning policy.  HIPP stated that it welcomed measures aimed at helping 
local authorities to increase the provision of homes that are built in appropriate 
locations to meet local needs and that are part of sustainable communities that 
provide jobs as well as housing.  It did however express some concerns about some 
of the changes which could have a negative impact on delivery. 
 
HIPP expressed concern about the proposed change to the definition of affordable 
homes to include a wider range of low cost home ownership options as this could 
reduce the number of homes available for rent.  HIPP also commented that it should 
be the responsibility of the individual local planning authority to determine the local 
split between affordable rented housing, intermediate products and starter homes.  It 
also supported, in principle, proposals to increase densities around commuter hubs 
and the development of brownfield land and small sites.  However, it felt that local 
authorities should determine what is appropriate given local circumstances.  In 
addition, HIPP stated that the provision of land for starter homes should not be at the 
detriment of employment and referred to the changes to permitted development 
which had significantly reduced the stock of employment land. 
 
New Homes Bonus Technical Consultation 
HIPP commented on the New Homes Bonus Technical Consultation and in particular 
the proposal to withhold the Bonus from areas where an authority does not have a 
Local Plan in place.  It stated that this was a rather crude measure that ignored the 
variety of reasons that a Local Plan may not be in place and that it would act as a 
disincentive to growth.  Similarly, HIPP objected to the suggestion that the bonus 
should be abated where planning permission had been only granted on appeal.  This 
ignored that there may be very good reasons to have issued a refusal and it could 
penalise local authorities for exercising their statutory planning functions.  HIPP also 
commented on the overly complicated proposal to only make payments above a 
baseline representing deadweight. 

Page 100



9 
 

Technical Consultation on the Implementation of Planning Changes 
At its March meeting HIPP agreed to comment on the DCLG’s Technical 
Consultation on implementation of planning changes which sought to implement the 
planning provisions in the Housing and Planning Bill, and some other planning 
measures.  HIPP expressed some specific strategic concerns relating to proposals to 
extend the possible scope of DCLG’s intervention in local plan making; the proposed 
introduction of approved providers to validate planning applications; and the limited 
nature of provisions related to the local setting of planning fees. 
 
 
Implementation & Monitoring 
 
Recruitment & Retention of Planning Staff 
HIPP Members have noted the difficulty in recruiting to planning posts and in 
2014/15 agreed to approach the University of Hertfordshire to run a planning course 
for the county.  The aim was to provide a long term solution to the problem by 
establishing a supply chain of experienced staff.  A major issue was that the 
Hertfordshire courses were not accredited by the Royal Town Planning Institute 
(RTPI) who had a moratorium in place on accrediting further courses in order to 
protect existing planning schools.  Both HIPP and the officer group (HPG) wrote to 
the RTPI asking it to lift the moratorium.  During the current year the moratorium has 
been lifted and the RTPI appointed a dialogue member to work with the University 
through the accreditation process.  The situation continues to be monitored. 
 
HIPP are also participating in an East of England Local Government Association 
(EELGA) initiative to address the problem of recruitment of planners and work is 
ongoing with regard to investigating opportunities to develop planning 
apprenticeships. 
 
In addition, opportunities to share resources are investigated and, for example, 
Welwyn Hatfield and Hertsmere currently share a Conservation officer post as do 
Watford and Three Rivers 
 
Joint Training Initiatives 
HIPP authorities worked together to share costs, deliver joint training initiatives and 
offer available places on internal courses.  This has provided advantages from 
economies of scale and other cost savings.  This included jointly commissioning 
Anglia Ruskin University to deliver a programme of Development Management 
seminars during the year. 
 
Localisation of Planning Fees 
HIPP have been active in calling for the localisation of planning fees in order that 
planning services can be adequately resourced.  In January 2016 it received a report 
set out the background to this, including details of previous lobbying by the Local 
Government Association and others to promote giving local planning authorities 
control over the setting of planning application fees.  HIPP incorporated their 
comments in support of the localisation of planning fees within their consultation 
response on the technical consultation on the Implementation of Planning Changes 
(see above under lobbying activity). 
 

Page 101



10 
 

HIPP Work Programme 
The HIPP Work Programme has been developed to guide and manage the activities 
of HIPP and the associated officer implementation groups.  It is now established as a 
standing information item on all HIPP meeting agendas. 
 
 
HIPP AGENDA Items 2015/16 
 
4 June 2015 

 Appointment of Chair and Vice Chair of HIPP 

 HIPP Terms of Reference 

 HIPP Annual Review 2014/15 

 Report on the Wider South East Summit 

 Hertfordshire LEP Update 

 Transport 

 HIPP Forward Programme 
Information Item: 

 HIPP Work Programme 
 
30 July 2015 

 Rail Strategy Presentation 

 Report on GLA Roundtable Meeting 

 Duty to Cooperate – Strategic Planning Framework Progress 

 LTB/A1 Consortium meetings 

 Hertfordshire LEP Update 

 HIPP Forward Programme 
Information Items: 

 HIPP Work Programme 

 Report on Planning & Health Workshop 

 Hertfordshire Forward – Report of Conference 
 
7 October 2015 

 Transport Vision 

 Water Study Update 

 Building Futures Update 

 Publication of HIPP Minutes 

 Report on GLA Roundtable Meetings 

 Hertfordshire LEP Update 

 HIPP Forward Programme 
Information Item: 

 HIPP Work Programme 
 
8 December 2015 

 Design South East Presentation 

 Building Futures Presentation 

 Second Wider South East Summit 

 Duty to Co-operate – Strategic Planning Framework Progress 

 Transport, including an update on the Local Transport Body 

Page 102



11 
 

 Hertfordshire LEP Update 

 HIPP Forward Programme 

 DCLG CIL Review Questionnaire 
Information Items: 

 HIPP Work Programme 

 Planning & Health 
 
26 January 2016 

 Proposals for research into viability and the Community Infrastructure Levy 
(CIL) 

 Localisation of Planning Fees 

 Recruitment & Retention of Planners 

 Report on Second Wider South East Summit 

 Transport, including an update on the Local Transport Body 

 Hertfordshire LEP Update 

 Strategic Planning Framework 

 HIPP Forward Programme 

 Government Consultation on changes to NPPF 

 New Homes Bonus Technical Consultation 
Information Items: 

 HIPP Work Programme 
 
24 March 2016 

 COMET Transport Model & Growth and Transport Plans 

 Transport Strategy 

 Transport, including an update on the Local Transport Body 

 London Plan/Wider South East Engagement 

 Strategic Planning Framework 

 Population & Household Projections 

 Hertfordshire LEP Update 

 Technical Consultation on Implementing Planning Changes 

 HIPP Forward Programme 
Information Item: 

 HIPP Work Programme 
 
 
Presentations 
 
Several presentations were made to HIPP during the year and the main ones are 
detailed below: 
 
Rail Strategy 
A presentation on the County’s Draft Rail Strategy was given to HIPP in July 2015 
and followed a series of workshops attended by Hertfordshire Local Authorities.  The 
Strategy is to enable lobbying for improvements and identifies priorities line by line.  
HIPP contributed a series of improvements to be incorporated within the final 
strategy. 
 
 

Page 103



12 
 

Transport Vision 
At the October HIPP Meeting a presentation was given on the Stage 2 work of the 
Transport Vision for the County.  This was out to stakeholder consultation until the 
end of November. 
 
Water Study Update& Drainage Infrastructure Project 
At its October 2015 meeting HIPP received an update on the Water Study and 
Drainage Infrastructure Project and were informed that consultants had been 
appointed and that work had commenced.  The meeting was advised that Phase 1 of 
the study should be completed by the end of May.   
 
The project objectives were discussed at the meeting.  Further information is 
provided under the ‘Strategic Infrastructure’ section of this report. 
 
Design South East 
Chris Lamb of Design South East (DSE) gave one of two presentations to the 
December 2015 meeting, the other was by Rachael Donovan of Building Futures 
which is referred to below.  He explained that DSE started in Kent and now works 
across the East, South East and London.  They are a charity and are independent 
and provide design review and support that is delivered locally.  DSE broker better 
design between developers, planners and communities.  They have a small team of 
six but have access, through a design panel of about a hundred, to a range of 
expertise.  DSE offer a range of services including design review; working with 
authorities to help them set up their own review arrangements; providing design 
advice to officers; brokering dialogue with communities; and offering training.  Chris 
Lamb also outlined a series of examples of work undertaken. 
 
Building Futures 
Rachael Donovan stated that she had given an update to HIPP about 18 months 
previous and John Rumble had reported on the biennial Awards event at the last 
meeting.  Building Futures is a design review service delivered by Hertfordshire 
County Council and available to Hertfordshire authorities at a cost of £2,500 p.a.  
This is operated along the same lines as DSE and reviews are generally paid for by 
developers. 
 
Members were advised that during the current year there had been an emphasis on 
developing the toolkit and keeping knowledge up to date and relevant.  Building 
Futures operate a design review service and must cover their costs.  The cost for the 
awards event is covered by sponsorship including from Warner Brothers, Herts LEP, 
the Green Triangle and Willmott Dixon. 
 
Building Futures operate a toolkit and technical module in house.  They also operate 
two websites, one is publicly accessible and the other is an intranet which holds 
technical resources that are only available to subscribing authorities. 
 
COMET Transport Model & Growth and Transport Plans 
Sue Jackson of Hertfordshire County Council gave a presentation that provided an 
update on the development of the county wide COMET transport model.  This was a 
highways model covering A, B and C roads and it was complemented by a separate 
public transport model.  It was confirmed that the model extended beyond the 

Page 104



13 
 

Hertfordshire boundary.  A lot of data had been collected to support the development 
of the model, including mobile phone records.  Over the next few years it was 
proposed to further enhance the model. 
 
The model assumed growth of 77,836 new dwellings between 2014 and 2031 and 
job growth of 70,000 over the same period.  Some of the initial findings of the model 
were illustrated including details of junction delays and hot spots.  The model could 
run various scenarios and options to test the impact of developments and Districts 
could directly commission work to support their own Local Plan development.  The 
initial results would be discussed at the next HPG Development Plans Group in April 
2016.   
 
Simon Willison of AECOM also gave a presentation on Growth & Transport Plans.  
He outlined the previous approach to urban transport planning and stated that the 
new system better reflected the growth agenda and was not constrained to urban 
areas.  He added that the new plans would be evidence led, based on broad travel 
patterns and would seek to maximise funding opportunities.   
 
The programme of developing the plans was outlined and the aim is to produce the 
first one, for the M1/M25/A41, during the 2016/17 financial year.  There would be a 
partnership approach and a Member Steering Group would be established for each 
plan and would include Parish, Town Council, District and County Council Members. 
 
 

HPG/DSW 
28 June 2016 

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 WELWYN HATFIELD COMMUNITY HOUSING TRUST MONITORING Q1 2016-17
	8 UPDATE ON THE COUNCIL'S AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROGRAMME (AHP)
	08a Overview of progress AHP Appendix A
	08b AHP monitoring Appendix  B Q1 2016 2017
	08c AHP monitoring Appendix C Delivery Plan

	9 SECTION 106 REPORT
	09a Section 106 - Appendix 1
	09b Section 106 - Appendix 2
	09c Section 106 - Appendix 3
	09d Section 106 - Appendix 4

	10 HERTFORDSHIRE INFRASTRUCTURE AND PLANNING PARTNERSHIP (HIPP) ANNUAL REVIEW 2015/2016
	10a HIPP Annual Review - Appendix


